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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
JULY BOARD MEETING
WEDNESDAY, JULY 13, 2024

Meeting Called to Order by Chairperson Vernon D. Burns at 5:00 PM.
Letters and Communications to the Board.
Approval of Board Minutes:

- June 13, 2024 Finance Committee Meeting
- June 13, 2024 Board Meeting

Reports
Presentations and Reports:
1. 2023 - 2024 Audit
2. Committee Reports
a) Finance Committee Report
3. Reports:
a) Income/Expense Report
b) Bridge Traffic Report
c) Airport Activity Report
d) Port Activity Report
e) Economic Development Report, Including Building Occupancy

Unfinished Business.
Business ltems.

A. General Administration
1. Acceptance of Federal Aid Local Project Agreement for the OBPA- Bridge
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Project for the Ogdensburg-Prescott
International Bridge.
2. Acceptance of 2023 — 2024 Audited Financials.

B. Oadensburg-Prescott International Bridge
1. Approval of Jacobson Mower Repair

C. Commerce Park
1. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 1 with NAC Logistics.

D. Ogdensburg International Airport
1. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Frederick A. Proven.
2. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Glass Box Research
Company.
3. Approval of Customer Estimate Sheet and Grant of Easement with Liberty
Utilities Corp.




VII.

VIII.

IX.

E. Port of Ogdensburg
1. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 9 with Comning Incorporated.
2. Port Dock Expansion-Approval of Work Order No. 24-02 with FVD
Engineering Services, S.C.

F. New York & Ogdensburg Railroad
1. Approval of Grant Agreement with the New York State Department of
Transportation.

G. Border Station
1. None.

H. Other Such Matters
1. None.

Concluding Comments from Citizens, Board Members, and/or Authority Staff.

Next Meeting Dates:

August 8, 2024 Thursday  5:00 PM (Proposed)
September 12, 2024 Thursday  5:00 PM (Proposed)
October 10, 2024 Thursday  5:00 PM (Proposed)
November 14, 2024 Thursday  5:00 PM (Proposed)
December 12, 2024 Thursday  5:00 PM (Proposed)
Adjournment
Dated: July 15, 2024 :
N T

“Steven J. Lawrence
Executive Director

Board of Directors: Staff: Press:

Mr. Vernon D. “Sam” Burns, Chairperson Mr. Steven J. Lawrence, Executive Director Mr. Andy Gardner, WDT

Ms. Megan J. M. Whitton, Vice Chair Ms. Patricia A. Nisco, CFO Ms. Monica Sandreczki, North. Cauntry Public Radio
Ms. Nicole Terminelli, Treasurer Mr. Anthony Adamczyk, Director of Economic Development ~ Ms. Dawn Merz, Radio Station YES FM

Ms. Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, Secretary Mr. James D. Chase, Director of Operations WWNY TV-7

Ms. Diane Para, Member Mr. Charlie Garrelts, Airport Manager Mr. Jimmy Lawton, North Country Now

Ms. Toni Kennedy, Member Mr. Jim Leven, Community Broadcasters

Mr. David King, Member



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
THURSDAY, JUNE 13, 2024

A meeting of the Finance Committee of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority was held in the

boardroom of the Administration Building on Thursday, June 13, 2024 at 4:30 PM.

The following were present:

Nicole Terminelli, Finance Committee Chair

David D. King, Member

Vernon D. Burns, Board Chair

Steven J. Lawrence, Executive Director

Patricia A. Nisco, Chief Financial Officer

Anthony Adamczyk, Director of Economic Development
James D. Chase, Director of Operations

Charlie Garrelts, Airport Manager

Finance Committee Chair, Nicole Terminelli, called the meeting to order at 4:31 PM.

I Business ltems

a. April Internal 2024 Financials

- Chief Financial Officer, Patrica A. Nisco, started with the Statement of Financial
Position. Accounts Receivable Regular is at $159,914 and, of that number, 94% of the
open A/R is current or 1-30 days. Accounts Receivable AEAS is at $817,002, this is
the amount owed to the OBPA by USDOT and Contour Airlines. Contour sent a large
payment in May, so they are current. Under Liabilities, Accounts Payable-Regular is
at $622,923; AEAS/Contour shows what the OBPA owes on payment to Contour for
$378,417. The NYS Retirement payment is still at $124,033. Project Accounts
Payable is at $857,027. As of the end of May, the OBPA paid an additional $19,000.
As of this Friday, everything in that line will be paid as the line of credit with Watertown

Savings Bank has been secured.



Chief Financial Officer, Patricia A. Nisco, moved on to the Budget to Actual, and
stated that this is the first month in the new fiscal year. The monthly and year to date
numbers are the same. Bridge Revenue was budgeted at 80%, but April Revenue
came in at 84%. The Port Revenue is up. When budgeting for the Port, one important
assumption is that there is no salt on the dock at the end of the season. As there is a
fair amount of salt at the Port, the Authority is still collecting rental income. The Bridge
Salary Expense line is under budget as the summer bridge crewmembers and
groundskeepers had not been hired yet. Ongoing debt interest was moved down into
the principal and interest line so that the Airport interest line will reflect only the
interest paid on the Line of Credit for the Revitalization Project. This allows the new
and existing interest to be tracked separately. There will always be a credit on the
Industrial Park Utility line due to tenants paying their utilities. The Marine Terminal
Salary Expense shows a credit as there was not as much work as budgeted. The
Principal and Interest line would’'ve been spot on except when the budget was
created, there wasn't an anticipation of taking money off of a general line of credit; the
difference shows that amount being paid on the line of credit. There is an excess in
the compensated balance account that will be transferred over to bring the amount
down.

Chief Financial Officer, Patricia A. Nisco, moved on to the Cash Flow: April 2024 —
September 2024, and stated that the other income and OBPA portion of grants has
been color coded to show the 76% reimbursement. Of the $1 million expensed in
June, 76% of that will come back in August. There will be about 45 days between
what is paid out and what is received back.

Chief Financial Officer, Patricia A. Nisco, did re-confirm that the line of credit with
Watertown Savings Bank has been approved. Nothing needs to change in the way

reimbursements are requested or received.



1. Other Such Matters
None.

On a motion by Finance Committee Member, David D. King, seconded by Board Chair, Vernon
D. Burns, the Finance Committee Meeting adjourned at 4:41 PM.

Nicole Terminelli
Finance Committee Chair



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
BOARD MEETING
THURSDAY, JUNE 13, 2024

The Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority was held in

the Board Room of the Administration Building on Thursday, June 13, 2024 at 5:00 PM.

The following were present:

ALSO:

ABSENT:

Vernon D. Burns, Chairperson

Megan J. M. Whitton, Vice-Chairperson
Nicole Terminelli, Finance Committee Chair
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, Secretary

David D. King, Member

Jennifer Granzow, Counsel

Steven J. Lawrence, Executive Director

Patricia A. Nisco, Chief Financial Officer

Anthony Adamczyk, Director of Economic Development
James D. Chase, Director of Operations

Charlie Garrelts, Airport Manager

Toni Kennedy, Member

Vernon D. Burns, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM

Letters and Communications to the Board.

Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence, stated there were no letters or communications to
the Board.

Public Comment, Discussion and Approval of Essential Air Service.

Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, explained that the Board would listen to comments and then

move forward with a resolution.

Sam Lamacchia, past Board Member and Chairman of the Board, Ogdensburg
» Talked about the processes 10 years ago taken to bring about the desire to make
an economic impact and build a bigger, better airport. Now the Board wants to
enhance what was started.
» The public has lost confidence in Contour Airlines.

» The Board did a great job of looking at the proposal from Breeze.



» There is a new terminal building coming. He hopes there is a jet bridge in the
developments. This needs to be part of the short- or long-range plan.

» Marketing is the next step. New York marketing isn’t really necessary, but
marketing in Ottawa is essential to bring the Canadian travelers back to the
airport.

- Wendy Hamilton, Ogdensburg

> Recently moved to Ogdensburg from the south.

> Once of the reasons she chose to move to Ogdensburg is because there was an
airport here, and she takes a flight to DC often.

> She is trying to take a look at this from the DOT standpoint. Breeze will need
waivers, and Contour is under the AEAS, which is a financial risk.

» The time of the proposed Breeze flight arrival in Dulles at that time of night;
passengers will be going to a hotel — there are no flights going out.

» Wendy is concerned about Breeze’s desire to bail if things don’t work out.

» She has been talking to a lot of people and they would prefer to stick with
Contour and use the SkyWest partnership.

» There should be a better job done to educate the community and making them
aware of what is going on. The City of Ogdensburg made a recommendation,
but please keep in mind that represents five individual opinions, not the entire
community as a whole.

- Brenda Lalone

> Brenda is someone who was has been stranded at OGS and was not very
happy.

» The CEO from Breeze at the Airport Public Meeting didn’t seem to have it
together. She would definitely not take a flight to Washington at 7:00 at night.

> She spoke with the CEO from Contour after the Public Meeting, and he

recognizes the problems.



> Boutique Airlines was top heavy, and putting on a show.
> Brenda felt that Contour put on the best presentation.

- Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, stated that Ms. Hamilton brought up a good point and
asked Airport Manager, Charlie Garrelts, if at any point in the three-year contract, which
is what Breeze is proposing, if they could get out of the contract. Airport Manager,
Charlie Garrelts, confirmed that after the three years they could break the contract.

- Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, is grateful for the interest and the three proposals
received. There are some details that the Board Members are privy to because of some
of the board committees that exist. Some of the challenges have been difficult to deal
with, which, in turn, has made it difficult financially. The nature of these details has to be
considered by the Board Members as they move forward. The resolution from the City
of Ogdensburg recommending Breeze Airlines as the preferred airline is in the Board
Packet. Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, stated that it was received and, on behalf of the
Board, thanked them for even considering the submission of this resolution.

On a motion made by Vice Chair, Megan J.M. Whitton, seconded by David D. King, it was

RESOLVED, that the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority Board and Staff strongly

recommend the United States Department of Transportation select Breeze Airline’s EAS

proposal to provide essential air services to Ogdensburg International Airport effective on

October 1, 2024 with 7 non-stop flights per week to Washington-Dulles (IAD) on a 137-seat

airbus A220 at a subsidy of $8.8 million the first year and a 3% increase per year in

subsequent years.

DISCUSSION:

Board Member, Nicole Terminelli, stated that without the interline agreements and with the

late departure and arrival at IAD, this would be an option that would not be well received by

most travelers. Being stranded, possibly, overnight, as someone who travels with children,
would not be a good option for her. In good conscience, she had to dismiss Breeze.

Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, asked Airport Manager, Charlie Garrelts, if the late departure



and arrival time could be discussed with Breeze if their proposal were chosen. Airport
Manager, Charlie Garrelts, stated that with public comments that have been received, he
has already spoken to Breeze about the late departure time. He stated that when airlines
put in a proposal, the Department of Transportation looks at the frequency of flights, not the
schedule being offered. Airport Manager, Charlie Garrelts, believes they will have an
afternoon departure and arrival at IAD. Vice Chair, Megan J.M. Whitton, stated that this has
happened in the past with the EAS and AEAS partners: within the contract period, the
departure and arrival times have changed. Vice Chair, Megan J.M. Whitton, asked about
IAD being the only destination for the next three years. Airport Manager, Charlie Garrelts,
stated because of the federal subsidy, yes it would be the only destination under the EAS
contract. Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, stated that the contract with the new airline won’t
start until October 1, 2024; therefore, Breeze has time to set up interline agreements.
A vote was called.
AYES: David D. King
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
NAYES: Nicole Terminelli
MOTION CARRIED.
V. Approval of Meeting Minutes.
- April 5, 2024 Board Meeting
- May 9, 2024 Finance Committee Meeting
- May 9, 2024 Board Meeting
On a motion made by David King, and seconded by Jennifer Quirk-Pickman,
these meeting minutes were approved by voice vote.
Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, asked for a motion to modify the agenda and go directly into business
items. On a motion made by Finance Chair, Nicole Terminelli, seconded by Jennifer Quirk-Pickman,
the motion was passed by a voice vote.

V. Presentations and Reports

1. Committee Reports



a) Finance Committee

Finance Committee Chair, Nicole Terminelli, reported that the Finance
Committee met before the Board Meeting and went over the April Financials.
Finance Committee Chair, Nicole Terminelli, turned it over to Chief Financial
Officer, Patricia A. Nisco.

Chief Financial Officer, Patricia A. Nisco, started with the Statement of Financial
Position. AEAS Receivables includes both what Contour and the DOT owes the
OBPA. Accounts Receivable Regular is at $159,914 and, of that number, 94% of
the open A/R is current or 1-30 days. Accounts Payable - Regular is at
$622,923. Accounts Payable — AEAS/Contour is at $378,417. NYS Retirement
is still at $124,033. Projects Accounts Payable is at $857,027.

Chief Financial Officer, Patricia A. Nisco, reported that the line of credit with
Watertown Savings Bank has been approved for the Airport Revitalization
Project. All Project Accounts Payable will be paid tomorrow.

Chief Financial Officer, Patricia A. Nisco, moved on to the Budget to Actual and
reported that Bridge Revenue was budgeted at 80%, but the Revenue came in at
84%. Unfortunately, the increase had nothing to do with the Solar Eclipse, but
more due to the holidays. There is a hope this will continue during the summer.
The Marine Terminal Revenue is up. When budgeting for the Port, one important
assumption is that there is no salt on the dock at the end of the season. As there
is a fair amount of salt at the Port, the Authority is still collecting rental income.
The Bridge Salary Expense is under budget. In April, the summer Bridge
Crewmembers and summer Groundskeepers had not yet been hired, so in May
and June the increase will be noticed. All seasonal help has been hired now.
With the new line of credit, the ongoing Airport debt interest expense was moved
down to principal and interest on loans, so the interest will only show the interest

incurred on the line of credit. If it is broken out, this will allow for better



trackability. During April, the line of credit had not been finalized reflecting the
zero interest expense. The Utility Expense in the Industrial Park shows a credit
balance due to the assumption that there are no tenants in the industrial park; but
as there are, they are paying their share of utilities. When the budget was
created, it was not anticipated that the OBPA would take money off of a general
line of credit, so the difference on principal & interest shows the additional
amount being paid on the line of credit. There is an excess in the compensating
balance account that will be transferred over to bring the amount due down. ltis
gratifying that these funds were set aside in the past and can be used to help pay
for this additional advance
2. Chief Financial Officer, Patricia A. Nisco, moved on to the Cash Flow: April 2024 —

September 2024, and reported that it the grant expenses/reimbursements are color

coded to show the timing between the two. The Cash Flow will show the extra layer with

the Airport Revitalization Project. For example, the 76% reimbursement for the April

expenditure will not appear until June. The NYS reimbursement for the Airport

Revitalization Project is approximately 76% of what was spent, therefore, the OBPA

share is the remaining 34%. There will be other funding sources to cover the part of

difference which are in the pipeline now. Otherwise, the Cash Flow is as it would be

expected to be.

3. Reports
a) Bridge Traffic Report
- The Bridge is 15.9% down from 2019, which is the normal year for the Bridge.

Auto crossings were down 16.6% and truck traffic went down 10.5%. Overall
revenue is down $37,000 from May of 2019 and up $10,000 from last year. The

recent trend can be seen as continuing.



b)

d)

Airport Activity Report

Airport Manager, Charlie Garrelts, reported for the month of May that the load
factor is still around 30%, which is down a little from last month, but keeping a
high completion rate and on-time performance. Hardly any flight cancellations or
delays for the month.

Airport Manager, Charlie Garrelts, reviewed the water line images that were

provided to the Board Members. Discussion regarding the water line ensued.

Port Activity Report

Director of Operations, James D. Chase, reported for salt and tarping, everything
was buttoned up, but a few last-minute townships decided they wanted to mix
their sand and salt for next year. The Port staff recovered the piles and are
waiting for any type of delivery of new salt for the upcoming season.

Director of Operations, James D. Chase, reported that 10 rail cars of meal were
received in May and loaded out 950 tons (about nine trucks).

Director of Operations, James D. Chase, reported that there were no rail cars of
pellets received for May, but loaded out 12 trucks (363 tons).

Director of Operations, James D. Chase, reported there was recently an
inspection audit for a customer that went fairly well.

Director of Operations, James D. Chase, stated that Port staff are cleaning up

the buildings and property and preparing for the coming season.

Economic Development Report, Including Building Occupancy

Director of Economic Development, Anthony Adamczyk, reported 88%
occupancy of the Commerce Park, and holding steady. Commerce Park space
has been shown to a company that specializes in quality assurance instruments
for ag, food, and pharmaceutical industries. These discussions are ongoing, but

the company appears to be very serious about coming to Ogdensburg.



- Director of Economic Development, Anthony Adamczyk, reported that a number
of meetings have been taking place with the architects and engineering firm for
the Childcare Facility to start building out plans. This is progressing forward.
These meetings have been taking place with The Arc to make sure the plans are
meeting their needs and codes.

- Director of Economic Development, Anthony Adamczyk, reported that he has
been working with about 15 tenants to renew leases and get them in line.

Currently there is a low turnover rate.

VL. Unfinished Business
1. None.
VII. Business ltems

A. General Administration
1. None.
B. Ogdensburg-Prescott International Bridge
1. Approval of Lease Agreement with Daniel J. Dodge, LCSW-R. On a motion made by
Vice Chair, Megan J.M. Whitton, seconded by David D. King, it was

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to
execute a new Lease Agreement with Daniel J. Dodge, LCSW-R for 170 square feet
of office space in Suite 207A of the Bridge Administration Building for a one (1) year
period commencing July 1, 2024 and terminating June 30, 2025 at a rate of $16.50
per square foot equaling $233.75 per month, $2,805.00 for the one (1) year period,
inclusive of utilities.

A vote was called.
AYES: David D. King

Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
Nicole Terminelli

MOTION CARRIED.

C. Commerce Park
1. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 1 with Day Automation. On a motion made by

Jennifer Quirk Pickman, seconded by David D. King, it was



RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to
execute Lease Supplement No. 1 with Day Automation for 2,324 square feet of office
and warehousing space in Building 4 of the Commerce Park Campus for a one (1)
year period commencing June 1, 2024 and terminating May 31, 2025 at a rate of

$6.00 per square foot equaling $1,162.00 per month, $13,944.00 for the one (1) year
period, exclusive of utilities, and be it;

FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other terms and conditions of the original Lease
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

A vote was called.

AYES: Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
David D. King

ABSTENTIONS: Nicole Terminelli

MOTION CARRIED.

2. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 3 with KDM Analytics, Inc. On a motion
made by Nicole Terminelli, seconded by Vice Chair, Megan J.M. Whitton, it
was

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to
execute Lease Supplement No. 3 with KDM Analytics, Inc. for 211 square feet of
office space in Building 1 of the Commerce Park Campus for a one (1) year period
commencing September 1, 2024 and terminating August 31, 2025 at a rate of $16.50
per square foot equaling $290.13 per month, $3,481.50 for the one (1) year period,
exclusive of utilities, and be it;

FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other terms and conditions of the original Lease
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

A vote was called.

AYES: Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
Nicole Terminelli
David D. King
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman

MOTION CARRIED.
D. Ogdensburg International Airport

1. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Rich Kelly. On a motion



made by Nicole Terminelli, seconded by David D. King, it was,

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to
execute a new Lease Agreement with Rich Kelly for T-Hangar No. 9 at the
Ogdensburg International Airport for a one (1) year period commencing June 1, 2024
and terminating May 31, 2025 at a rate of $240.00 per month, $2,880.00 for the one
(1) year period, inclusive of utilities.

A vote was called.

AYES: Megan J.M. Whitton
Nicole Terminelli
David D. King
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns

MOTION CARRIED.

2. Approval of Corporate Hangar Lease Agreement with Timothy Burtch. On a motion

made by David D. King, seconded by Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, it was

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to
execute a new Lease Agreement with Timothy Burtch for space in the Corporate
Hangar at the Ogdensburg International Airport for a four (4) month and nine (9) day
period commencing May 23, 2024 and terminating September 30, 2024 at a rate of
$240.00 per month, $1,029.68 for the specified period, inclusive of utilities.

A vote was called.

AYES: Nicole Terminelli
David D. King
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton

MOTION CARRIED.

E. Port of Ogdensburg

1.

Approval of Lease Agreement with Woodcrest Dairy, LLC. On a
motion made by Megan J.M. Whitton, seconded by Nicole Terminelli, it was

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute
a lease agreement with Woodcrest Dairy, LLC for approximately 42 acres of vacant
land, consisting of 14 acres east of Acco and approximately 28 acres on Wagner
Road, for a period commencing May 1, 2024 and terminating November 30, 2024 at
a rate of $60 per acre or $2,520.00 for the lease period and be it,

FURTHER RESOLVED, the lease gives the Authority the option to cancel the lease
with sixty days’ notice should the need arise that a major industrial project requires
the acreage and be it,

FURTHER RESOLVED, that Woodcrest Dairy shall provide proof of appropriate



A vote was called.

insurance coverage naming the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority as an
additional insured.

AYES: Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
Nicole Terminelli

ABSTENTIONS: David D. King

MOTION CARRIED.

F. New York & Ogdensburg Railroad

ill.

A vote was called.

MOTION CARRIE

Approval of Easement Agreement with Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation. On a
motion made by Nicole Terminelli, seconded by Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, it was

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to
execute an Easement Agreement with Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation to clear,
install a gravel lot, and have access to a portion of New York & Ogdensburg Railroad
property not to exceed 0.1 acres located in Norfolk, New York adjacent to existing
Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation infrastructure for a period of five (5) years,
commencing June 1, 2024 and terminating May 31, 2029 at a rate of $3,175.00 per
year.

AYES: David D. King
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
Nicole Terminelli

D.

G. Border Station

1.

None.

H. Other Such Matters

1.

Approval of Contract with Luck Bros. Inc. for the Border Station Pavement
Resurfacing Project. On a motion made by Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, seconded by
David D. King, it was

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to
execute any and all documents associated with the contract documents with Luck



Bro. Inc. for the Border Station Pavement Resurfacing Project, for a cost not to
exceed $251,200.00.

A vote was called.

AYES: Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Megan J.M. Whitton
Nicole Terminelli
David D. King

ABSTENTIONS: Vernon D. Burns

MOTION CARRIED.

VIll.  Concluding Comments from Citizens, Board Members, and/or Authority Staff

1.

Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, reported that there is a new Board Member appointed by
the Senate, Diane Para. She was unable to be at the meeting tonight due to a prior
commitment, but hopes to be at the next Board Meeting. Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns,
has encouraged her to take a tour with Mr. Lawrence so that she can see the scope of
the work done by the OBPA.

Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, reported that two current Board Members have been re-
appointed reminding them that they need to submit their Oath of Office forms.

Sam Lamacchia, community member, asked about the relationship between the OBPA
and the City Council and making the same recommendation as the City of Ogdensburg,
and if it had made a difference if the OBPA made the endorsement of Breeze Airlines
before the City of Ogdensburg.

Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, stated that public comment and feedback is important,
though, in this case, he was not sure the decision would have been different. He doesn’t
have a problem with having opposing viewpoints.

Chief Financial Officer, Patricia A. Nisco, reviewed the public comment submissions that

were submitted to the DOT platform.



Next Meeting Date

The next Board meeting was confirmed for Thursday, July 11, 2024, at 5:00 PM.
Adjournment

On a motion made by Finance Committee Chair, Nicole Terminelli, seconded by David D.

King, the meeting adjourned at 6:22 PM.

Jennifer Quirk-Pickman Vernon D. Burns
Secretary Chairperson
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Certified Public Accountants

Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority
Board Summary
March 31, 2024

Financial Statements and Auditors’ Reports were reviewed by the Authority’s management,

Unmodified (i.e. unqualified or “clean”) opinions to be issued on the Authority’s financial statements and
on the Authority’s New York State Department of Transportation Single Audit Report.

No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies were noted in the Authority’s internal controls over
financial reporting or federal awards.

One instance of noncompliance was noted and is described in the schedule of findings and questioned costs
as item 2024-001.

Management provided everything we requested in a timely manner.

Total assets amounted to $121,321,614, representing a 0.2% increase from the prior year. The change was
mainly due to increases in grants receivable from the State, offset by the Authority no longer reporting a
proportionate share of the net pension asset.

Deferred outflows of resources amounted to $1,322,559, remaining consistent with the prior year.

Total liabilities amounted to $33,966,235, representing a 10% increase from the prior year. The change was
mainly due to changes in actuarial assumptions related to the Authority’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability and OPEB, as well as an increase in accounts payable.

Total deferred inflows of resources amounted to $14,783,998, representing a 15% decrease from the prior
year. The change was due to changes in actuarial assumptions related to the Authority’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability and OPEB, as well as the amortization of the Authority’s various leases.

The following summarizes the changes in the condensed Statements of Net Position:

2024 2023 Change

Current assets $ 10,807,580 9,341,370 1,466,210
Capital assets (net of depreciation) 94,887,191 94,776,992 110,199
Other noncurrent assets 15.626.843 _16.920.867 (1 .294.024)

Total assets 121321614 121.039.229 282.385
Deferred outflows of resources 1.322.559 1.323.916 (1.357)
Current liabilities 5,137,276 3,103,915 2,033,361
Noncurrent liabilities 28.828.959 27.650.987 1.177.972

Total liabilities 33.966.235 30.754.902 3.211.333
Deferred inflows of resources 14.783.998 17.436.565 (2,652.567)

Net position

$ 893,940

74,171,678

(277,738)



Net position decreased $277,738 to a total of $73,893,940 as of March 31, 2024.

Operating revenue amounted to $7,199,837, representing a 26% decrease from the prior year. The change
was mainly due to the lack of wind turbine activity in the current year.

Operating expenses amounted to $16,493,521, remaining consistent with the prior year. The operating
expenses remained consistent due to a decrease from the lack of wind turbine activity, offset by an increase
in alternative essential air service program expenses and increases in expenses related to the changes in
actuarial assumptions involving pension and OPEB.

Nonoperating income amounted to $9,015,946, representing a 16% decrease from the prior year. The
change was mainly due to the harbor deepening funds which occurred in the prior year, offset in part by the
increase in State grants in the current year.

The following summarizes the changes in the condensed Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position:

2024 2023 Change
Operating revenue $ 7,199,837 9,679,088 (2,479,251)

Operating expenses 16493521 16.513.191 (19.670)
Operating loss (9,293,684)  (6,834,103) (2,459,581)
Nonoperating income (expense) 9.015.946 10438373 (1.422.427)
Change in net position (277,738) 3,604,270 (3,882,008)
Net position at the beginning of year 74,171,678  70.567.408  3.604.270

Net position at end of year

$ 73,893,940

74,171,678 (277,738)
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The Governing Board
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority:

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority
(the Authority), as of and for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related notes to

financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority, as of March 31, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its financial
position and its cash flows thereof and for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority and
to-meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinien.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, managément is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability to
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance biit is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement When it exists. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is hlgher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if’ ﬂlere is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the findncial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such

procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Authonty s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audits.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information as listed in the
table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the GASB who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and



comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on'the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Codé of Federal Regulatigns Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is net a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with GAAS. In our opinien, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated ,2024
on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The puipose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financia) reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Williamsville, New York
, 2024



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
March 31, 2024 and 2023

This annual report consists of three parts:

e Management’s Discussion and Analysis
e Basic Financial Statements
e Required Supplementary Information

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 1950, Governor Thomas E. Dewey signed a bill (Atticle 3, Title 8) cfeating the Ogdensburg Bridge
Authority. Legislation in 1958 (Article 6, Title 3) created the Ogdensburg Port Authority. The two
Authorities were combined into the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority (OBPA) in 1961 (Article
3, Title 8). Today, the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority manage $105 million in assets
including the following holdings:

The Ogdensburg-Prescott International Bridge

The Port of Ogdensburg "

The Ogdensburg International Airport (OGS)

The Ogdensburg Border Station

Commerce Patk Campus/Heavy Industrial Park (Foreign Trade Zone 110)
New York and Ogdensburg Railway: a short-line railroad

Each entity gperates according to the Authority’s eentral mission:

While remaining self-sustaining, the Authority creates sound economic business development through
the promotion of buildings and river, road, rail, and air transportation. This is accomplished by
providing exceptional eustomer service, safe and secure facilities, good environmental stewardship,
‘and focused professionalism.

The COVID-19 pandemic has continued to impact the OBPA in a variety of ways and varying levels
of significance:

e The Ogdensburg-Prescott International Bridge provides a vital link to economic markets in
the U.S. and Canada. In the year prior to the pandemic, the bridge handled in excess of
655,000 vehicles. During the first year of the pandemic, the OBPA experienced a 78.84%
drop in overall bridge traffic due to the border between the U.S. and Canada closed to all but
essential and commercial traffic. Traffic is rebounding as a result of restrictions being lifted
and the major repairs to the bridge completed. Currently, the vehicle traffic has recovered to
between 78% to 82% of pre-COVID numbers.

e The bridge improvements completed the fall of 2021 have been a crucial step forward in the
critical capital rehabilitation needed to secure the bridge's future and the continued support of
the regional economy. The Authority continues to advocate with state and federal officials to
acquire the funding for the rehabilitation.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

e The Port of Ogdensburg continues to handle the inflow of products 16 the region. Grain and
salt shipments; and storage of these commodities have remained sttong during this past year.
A very brisk fall and winter unloading, storing, and shipping out of salt fer read contracts has
kept the Port active. In conjunction with the Port's private partner, Ogdensburg Marketing
and Logistics Company, the Port has attracted new activity while continuing to secure wind
turbine projects for the 2025-2026 fiscal year.

® The Ogdensburg International Airport (OGS) continues service with Contour Airlines, as its
Alternative Essential Air Service (AEAS) airline. With the exffiration of Contour’s AEAS
contract this September, a call for bids has been requested by Federal Department of
Transportation (DOT) to gauge the interest and options of airlines willing to offer EAS/AEAS
service to OGS beginning this fall.

e The OGS entered a submission to the 2021 Upstate Economic Development and
Revitalization Competition, and was one of the airports awarded grant funding to revitalize
Upstate commercial passenger airports. This award will allow QOGS to renovate the current
existing terminal, and make exterior improvements te the airport. In addition to renovations
to the terminal, the terminal will be expanded to include a multi-purpose, flexible great room
for passenger comfort and community use. The installation of solar panels and electrical
passenger vehac“le/eqmpment charging stations will further green initiatives by the Authority
and New York State.

o New York and Ogdensburg Railway shipments remains strong bringing service from the Port
to the greater North Country region and beyond. Railway traffic increases can be attributed
to both volume growth from existing clients and new accounts to the rail line. Bridge rehab
continues on two bridges bringing their capacity wight to the 286,000 1bs. standard for rail
freight to ensure continued commercial success into the future.

OUTLOOK

Subsequent to year end, the Authority incurred additional expenses which will cause the Authority to
operate at a deficit. The Authority has begun to take steps to defer various projects in order to be able
o maintain its primary operations.

Future job creafion through the use of Authority assets and financial stability will remain the driving
focus of the Authority. Jobs create economic growth, increased relevance, and expansion of key
partnerships, Capitalizing on anticipated airport growth with a new and innovative approach is
essential. The Authority’s partnership with the Ogdensburg Marketing and Logistics Company will
continue to open new opportunities for the Authority at the Marine Terminal. Additional public-
private partnerships will be pursued, where suitable, to directly create private sector jobs.



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Accounting management and increased Finance Committee engagement continues as lack of
resources threaten overall visions. As the Authority’s reserves were intentionally depleted in support
of the airport expansion project at OGS, it remains a priority of the Authority to regain a solid financial
footing; and to continue its capital projects which can both offer employment to the residents of the
North Country area and bring services to the area.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to served as an introductish to the Authority’s basic
financial statements. The basic financial statements consist of four components:

Statements of Net Position

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements

The Statements of Net Position presents information on all of the éuthonty s assets, deferred
outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows at a certain date, with the difference between the four
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in nef posmon may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The Statements of Reévenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how
the Authority’s nét position changed during a period of time. These changes are recorded on the
accrual basis of accounting, as more fully described in the notes to financial statements.

The Statements of Cash Flows reconciles the Authority’s operating loss as reported on the accrual
basis of accounting with the net cash provided by (used in) operating, non-capital financing, capital
finaricing, and investing activities.

The Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information that is an integral part of the
financial statements taken as a whole.
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Position, over time, may serve as a useful indicator of the Authority’s financial position. As of
March 31, 2024 and 2023, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources by $73,893,840 and $74,171,678, respectively.

The Authority’s financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net
results of activities, the valuation of certain assets and liabilities, the acquisition and payment of debt,
the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the depreciation of capital assets.



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The following table presents a summary of the Authority’s financial position as of March 31, 2024,
2023 and 2022:

2024 2023 2022

Current assets $ 10,807,580 9,341,370 8311,936
Capital assets (net of depreciation) 94,887,191 94,776,992 99,277,423
Other noncurrent assets 15.626.843 16.920.867 17.719.370

Total assets 124.321.614 121.039.229 125.308.729
Deferred outflows of resources 1.322.559 1.323.916 2.039.205
Current liabilities 5,137,276 3,103,915 9,557,816
Noncurrent liabilities 28.828.959 27.650.987 28.514.493

Total liabilities 33.966.235 30.754.902 38.072.309
Deferred inflows of resources 14.783.998 17436.565 18.708.217
Net position § _73.893.940 _74.171.678 _70,567.408

Changes in the Authority’s net position can be determined by reviewing the following condensed
Statements of Revenue, Expénses and Changes in Net Position for the years ended March 31, 2024,

2023 and 2022:
2024 2023 2022

Operating revenue $ 7,199,837 9,679,088 6,112,071
Operating expenses 16.493.521 16.513.191 9.736.039
Operating loss (9,293,684) (6,834,103) (3,623,968)
Nonoperating income {expense) 9.015946 10438373 _9.942.196
Change in net position (277,738)  3,604270 6,318,228
Net position at the beginning of year 74.171.678 70.567.408 64.249.180
Net position at end of year $73,893.940 74.171.678 70.567.408

Operating revenue in fiscal year 2023-2024 decreased 26%, due to the lack of wind turbine activity
in the current year. Operating revenue in fiscal year 2022-2023 increased 58%, enhanced by the
increase in bridge traffic.  Operating expenditures in fiscal year 2023 - 2024 decreased 0.1%
attributed to the lack of wind turbine activity in the current year whereas operating expenditures
increased 70% in 2022 - 2023, primarily attributable to an increase in professional fees, salaries and
wages.



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

CAPITAL ASSETS

The following table is an analysis of the Authority’s capital assets as ofMarchg: 1,2024, 2023 and
2022:

2024 - 2023 2022
Original cost $ 166,951,536 166,444,818 165,764,000
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (80.295.263) (75.469.154) (70.715.865)

86,656,273 90,975,664 95,048,135

Construction in progress 8230918 3.801.328 4,229.288
Total capital assets $ 94887191 94,776,992 _99.277.423
LONG-TERM DEBT

The following table is an analysis of long-term debt as of March 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022:

2024 12023 2022

Advances due to State of New York $18,629.974 18,629.974 18,629,974
Bonds payable 5,803,337 5,906,034 5,996,423
Notes payable 2,415,933 2,979,346 3,678,576
Capital lease obligations 21,081 71,596 138,190
Postemployment benefits other than pensions 2,059,803 1,289,684 1,351,912
Net pension liability - proportionate share 1,179,854 - 7,360
Lease and escrow deposits 175,700 174,631 137.151

30,285,682 29,051,265 29,939,586
Less current portion (1.456,723) (1.400.278) (1.425.093)

Total long-term debt $28.828.950 27.650.987 28,514,493
CONTACT INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of the Authority’s
finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Ogdensburg Bridge
and Authority at One Bridge Plaza, Ogdensburg, New York 13669.



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Statements of Net Position
March 31, 2024 and 2023

Assets and Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Current assets:

Cash and equivalents

Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Current portion of lease receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Compensating balance
Lease receivable, excluding current portion
Security deposits
Bond payment reserve
Debt service reserve
Net pension asset - proportionate share
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and amortization

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources;
Pension
OPEB

Total deferred outflows of resources

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2024 2023
6,228,216 6,809,275
1,082,364 955,715
1,810,154 50,709
1,589,787 1,365,363
65,415 80,316
31,644 79,992
10,807,580 9,341,370
332,280 227,973
14,351,351 15,276,124
175,700 185,233
231,910 220,275
535,602 511,027
- 500,235
94,887,191 94,776,992
110,514,034 111,697,859
121,321,614 121,039,229
993,971 1,195,643
328,588 128,273
1,322,559 1,323,916

(Continued)



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Statements of Net Position, Continued

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest
Line of credit
Accrued vacation compensation
Current portion of due to State of New York
Current portion of bonds payable
Current portion of notes payable
Current portion of capital lease obligation

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Lease and escrow deposits

Postemployment benefits other than pensions

Net pension liability - proportionate share

Due to State of New York, excluding current portion

Bonds payable, excllidipg current portion

Notes payable, excluding current portion

Capital lease 6bligation, excluding current portion
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Pension
Lease
OPEB

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2024 2023
$ 2,727,177 1,280,447
85,891 87,472
698,244 187,483
169,241 148,235
750,000 675,000
112,695 102,695
580,477 563,413
13,551 59,170
5,137,276 3,103,915
175,700 174,631
.2,059,803 1,289,684
1,179,854 -
17,879,974 17,954,974
5,690,642 5,803,339
1,835,456 2,415,933
7,530 12,426
28,828,959 27,650,987
33,966,235 30,754,902
150,981 1,806,980
14,074,002 14,924,138
559,015 705,447
14,783,998 17,436,565
67,318,622 67,002,559
1,099,792 959,275
5,475,526 6,209,844
$ 73,893,940 74,171,678




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
Operating revenue:

Bridge tolls 2,486,177 2,088,739
Rentals 2,873,004 3,024,222
Port operating fees 1,119,562 4,011,638
Parking revenue 49,652 64,977
Airport fees and services 477,845 299,698
Construction projects - 18,331
Miscellaneous 193,597 171,483

Total operating revenue 7,199,837 9,679,088

Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages 2,133,036 2,234,866
Payroll taxes and benefits 1,795,681 912,361
Automotive 84,821 185,760
Building and grounds maintenance 375,197 330,558
Equipment repairs and maintenance 234,569 566,854
Fuel and utilities 262,526 241,668
Parking lot operations 211,729 216,157
Security 273,265 255,960
Insurance 336,179 390,242
Telephone and postage 39,127 38,885
Advertising 261,282 209,831
Professional fees 632,055 2,033,263
Depreciation and amortization 5,036,062 4,753,289
Office supplies 14,789 26,416
Subscriptions and dues 955 1,705
Travel and meetings 1,484 4,977
Alternative essential air services program expenses 4,653,270 3,091,766
Specialized bandling equipment rental - 901,437
Miscellaneous 147,494 117,196

Total operating expenses 16,493,521 16,513,191

Operating loss (9,293,684) (6,834,103)

(Continued)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

11



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, Continued

2024 2023
Nonoperating income (expense):
Federal and State grants $ 9,437,367 3,954,177
CARES Act - airport grants - 1,169,647
Gain on sale of assets 10,006 24,734
Interest income 293,793 139,461
Loss on foreign currency exchange (214,733) (160,444)
Harbor deepening funds - 5,851,794
Interest expense (510,487) (540,996)
Total nonoperating income (expense) 9,015,946 10,438,373
Change in net position (277,738) 3,604,270
Net position at beginning of year 74,171,678 70,567,408
Net position at end of year $ 73,803,940 74,171,678

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Other payments

Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Principal paid on capital debt
Bond payment reserve
Debt service reserve
Capital expenditures
Federal and State grants
Compensating balance
Interest paid on capital debt
Line of credit
Net cash provided by capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income
Gain on sale of assets
Loss on foreign currency exchange
Proceeds from CARES Act - airport grants

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net change in cash and equivalents
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2024 2023

$ 6,934,003 9,424,007
(1,462,896) (2,508,288)
_{7,814,444)  (9,528,091)
(2,343,337) (2,612,372)
(716,625) (856,213)
(11,635) (6,456)
(24,575) (11,211)
(5,146,261) (252,858)

7,677,922 9,932,110

(104,307) 125,330
(512,068) (552,644)
510,761 (647,690)

1,673,212 7,730,368

293,793 139,461

10,006 24,734
(214,733) (160,444)

- 1,169,647

89,066 1,173,398

(581,059) 6,291,394

6,809,275 517,881

$ 6,228216 6,809,275

(Continued)



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash

used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense

Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Lease receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Deferred outflows of resources - pensions
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Security deposits
Other postemployment benefits

Net pension liability - proportionate share
Deferred inflows of resources - pensions

Deferred inflows of resources - leases

Net cash used in operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2024 2023

$(9,293,684) (6,834,103)
5,036,062 4,753,289
(126,649) 40,079
700,349 671,777
14,901 (10,489)
48,348 (48,401)
201,672  (140,384)
1,467,736 695,307
10,602 82,046
423372 (142,451)
1,680,080  (507,595)
(1,655,999)  (344,894)
(850,136) _ (826,553)
$(2,343337) (2,612,372)




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024 and 2023

(1) Organization

The Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority (the Authority) was created pursuant to the Public
Authorities Law of the State of New York (the State) by an enactment entitled “Ogdensburg
Bridge Authority Act,” on April 18, 1950. The name ‘of the Authority was amended from
“Ogdensburg Bridge Authority” to “Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority” on April 1, 1960.
The Authority is a component unit of the State.

The Authority was created for the purpose of conmstructing, operating and maintaining the
international bridge across the St. Lawrence River. The operations of the bridge are accounted
for in the Bridge Fund. The Port Fund operations of the Authority consist of the Ogdensburg
International Airport, Port of Ogdensburg, New York and Ogdensburg Railway, and an
industrial park all of which are accounted for as separate-units within that fund.

The reporting entity of the Authority is based on criteria set forth by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14 - “The Financial Reporting Entity.” The financial
reporting entity consists of the primary government, organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would
cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The
accompanying financial statements present the activities of the Authority and its component
unit, the Ogdensburg Border Station, In¢. (the Border Station). The decision to include a
potentidl component unit in the Authority’s reporting entity is based on several criteria
including legal standing, fiscal dependency, and financial accountability. Based on the
application of these criteria the follewing is a brief description of the component unit included
in the Authority’s reporting entity.

e Blended Component Unit
Ogdensburg Border Station. Inc. - The Border Station was created as a local development

company for the purpose of constructing a new border station for the U.S. Customs
and to issue taxable revenue bonds for financing the cost. The governing body of the
Authority is the same as the governing body of the Border Station. During the year
ended March 31, 2020 the Border Station transferred all net position to the Authority.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements is as follows:

(a) Basis of Accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. GASB is the accepted standards
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Continued

(b) Basis of Presentation
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with GAAP for
government entities as prescribed by the GASB as a proprietary fund.

(c) Operating Measure
Operating income reported in the financial statements includes revenue and expenses related

to the primary continuing operations of the furid. Principal operating revenue include
bridge tolls, airport operating fees, building rentals and port operating fees. Pringipal
operating expenses include the costs of providing these services, administrative expenses
and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenue and éxpenses are classified as non-
operating in the financial statements. '

(d) Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(e) Cash and Equivalents
For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and equivalents includes money market accounts

and any highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less.

(f) Investments

The investment policy of the Authority stipulates that the Authority may invest in obligations
of the State, the United States government, repurchase agreements, or money market
deposit accounts. Repurchase agreements must be collateralized by obligations
guaranteed by the United States government, which are equal in value to the repurchase
agreement. The agreements shall not exceed sixty days and payment shall be made only
upon delivery of collateral to the Authority’s agent. All investments and related collateral
are held by the Authority’s agent in the Authority’s name.

(g) Receivables
Accounts receivable are stated at net estimated realizable value by writing off bad debts as
they are determined to be uncollectible. An allowance for bad debts is not considered
material; accordingly, no allowance is maintained.

Grants receivable from Federal and State agencies are recorded at the time the right to receive
such funds occurs.

(h) Inventories
Inventories are stated at cost on the first-in, first-out method.

(i) Prepaid Expenses
Expenses paid in advance of the period to be benefited are recorded as an asset and are
expensed over the period of time to be benefited.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Continued

(j) Capital Assets

Investments in capital assets are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs,
renewals, and improvements, which do not materially extend the useful lives of the assets,
are charged to operations when incurred. Infrastructure assets, such as roads and bridges,
are recorded at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Grants received
from other governmental agencies to partially finance capital projects are shown as grant
income and are not offset against the cost of thé facilities. Donated facilities are shown at
estimated fair market value at the date of acquisition. Effective for the year ended March
31, 2002, the Authority changed its depreciation poli¢y to record depreciation on
infrastructure assets in order to conform with the provigions of GASB Statement No. 34.
The Authority’s capital asset policy defines capitalization of an expenditure when the
dollar amount exceeds $2,500.

The straight-line method of depreciation is generally used for capital assets, based on their
estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives of the various classes of depreciable capital
assets are as follows:

Buildings 20 - 50 years

Improvements/infrastructure 10 - 50 years

Bridge 50 - 100 years

Vehicles and equipment 3 - 20 years

Right-to-use asset 4 - 5 years
(k) Real Estate Sales

The Authority accounts for real estate sales under the accrual method when certain criteria are
met. Under the accrual method, profit or loss is recognized when a sale transaction has
been consummated.

(1) Foreign Currency Translation
The Authority translates Canadian assets and liabilities to U.S. currency at rates of exchange
in effect at the financial statement date. Expense items are translated at average exchange
rates prevailing during the reporting period. Revenue is converted on a daily basis.

(m) Retirement Benefits
The Authority provides retirement benefits for substantially all of its regular full-time
employees through contributions to the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement
System (ERS or the System). The System provides various plans and options, some of
which require employee contributions.

(n) Compensated Absences
Union employees and management/confidential employees are allowed to accumulate earned
sick time up to a maximum of 165 days and 200 days, respectively. Vacation time earned
as of an employee’s anniversary date in excess of 30 days may not be carried forward.
Upon termination, unused sick leave may be credited toward retirement and/or health
benefits, while vacation time will be paid to the employee.

17



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Continued

(n) Compensated Absences. Continued
As of March 31, 2024 and 2023, the liabilities for accrued vacation leave amounted to
$169,241 and $148,235, respectively.

(o) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

In addition to providing the retirement benefits described in note 2(m), the Authority provides
postemployment health insurance coverage to its retired full-time employees and their
survivors who have obtained certain minimum qualifications based on years of service.
Years of service will be calculated on a calendar year basis and to receive credit for a year
of service, an employee must have worked a minimum of 1,600 hours during a calendar
year. Partial years of service will not be granted. The payment of this benefit is not
governed by any employment contract and is done at the discretion of the members of the
Board of the Authority.

The Authority pays a substantial portion of the cost of premiums to an insurance company
which provides health care insurance. The Authority will pay 75% of health insurance
premiums for current and future retirees with 20 years of active service until age 65. The
Authority will not reimburse retirees for the cost of Medicdre.

(p) Unearned Revenue and Revenue Recognition
The Authority recognizes revenue when earned. Revenue associated with cash receipts
received in advance from rental operations is deferred until the month they are earned.

(q) Advertising Costs /
Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred and amounted to $261,282 and
$209,831 for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

(r) Pollution Remediation Obligations
In accordance with the GASB Statement No. 49 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pollution Remediation Obligations,” management has concluded that no obligating event
has occurred that would require recognition of a future pollution remediation obligation
in the accompanying financial statements.

(s) Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then. The Authority has three items that qualify for reporting in this category. The
first item is related to the pension reported in the statements of net position. This
represents the effect of the net change in the Authority’s proportion of the collective net
pension asset or liability and difference during the measurement period between the
Authority’s contributions and its proportion share of total contributions to the pension
system not included in pension expense. The second item is the Authority contributions
to the pension system subsequent to the measurement date. The third item is for OPEB
and relates to the estimated net contributions subsequent to the measurement date as well
as changes of assumptions.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(s) Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources. Continued

Deferred inflows of resources represents an acquisition of net poSition that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resdurces (revenue) until that time.
The Authority has three items that qualifies for reporting in this category. The first item
is related to the pension and represents changes in the Authority’s propogtion of the
collective net pension liability and difference dufing the measurement periods between
the Authority’s contributions and its proportion share of total contributions to the pension
system not included in pension expense.. The second item is related to OPEB, the
Authority has two items that qualify for reporting on this category; the first represents the
difference between actual and expected experience, and the second represents the changes
of assumptions or other inputs. The third item is related to long-term lease revenue.

(t) Future Impacts of Accounting Pronguncements
GASB has issued the following pronouncements which will be implemented in the years
required. The effects of the implementation of these pronouncements are not known at this
time.
Statement No. 99 - Omnibus 2022. Effective for various periods through fiscal years
beginning after June 30, 2023.

Statement No. 101 - Compensated Absences. Effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2023.

Statement No. 102 - Certain Risk Disclosures. Effective for fiscal years beginning after June
15, 2024. '

Statement No. 103 - Financial Reporting Model Improvements. Effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2025.

(u) Subsequent Events
The Authority has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the report which is the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.

(3) Cash and Investments

The Authority’s investment policies are governed by State statutes. In addition, the Authority has
its own written investment policy. The Authority’s monies must be deposited in Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured commercial banks or trust companies located
within the State. The chief financial officer is authorized to use demand and time accounts
and certificates of deposit. Permissible instruments include U.S. treasury bills. Collateral is
required for demand and time deposits and certificates of deposit for all deposits not covered
by FDIC insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United
States and its agencies and obligations of the State and its municipalities and school districts.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(3) Cash and Investments, Continued

Deposits are valued at cost or cost plus interest and are categorized as eithet: (1) insured, (2) held
by the financial institution’s trust department or agency in the Authority’s name, or (3)
uncollateralized.

Total financial institution (bank) balances at March 31, 2024 and 2023 were $7,563,031 and
$7,942,674, respectively. These deposits are categonzedas follows

i 2 3
2024 $ 983072 6,490,605 89,854
2023 $ 938357  7.004,317 -

In compliance with State regulations for bridge and port authefitjes, the expenditure of revenue
must be authorized by the Comptroller of the State. As of March 31, 2024 and 2023, the
Authority had $77,442 and $89,770, respectively, in demand deposit accounts subject to State
authorization. In addition, the Adthority was authorized to establish revolving checking and
savings accounts to enable the Authority to process its own checks subject to post audit by the
State. As of March 31, 2024 and 2023, the Authority had $96, 160 and $29,637, respectively,
in revolving checking and savings accounts for this purpose.

The bond payment reserve represents funds held in a separate deposit account in the custody of
the trustee of the Series 2017 bonds in the amount of $231,910 and $220,275 as of March 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively.

The debt service reserve represents funds in a separate deposit account in the custody of the trustee
of the Series 2017 bonds in the amount of $535,602 and $511,027 as of March 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively.

(4) Lease Rcceivabl:

The Authority has executed multiple lease agreements for buildings and spaces. The Authority
implemented GASB Statement No. 87 for the year ended March 31, 2023 and used the
payment schedules for those leases to measure the lease receivable. Calculations require an
interest rate assumption for discounting of future lease payments. The interest rates averaged
at 3.94% annually, depending on the commencement date and length of each lease. The
following is the amortization schedule for the lease receivables:

Yeéar ending Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 1,589,787 577,226 2,167,013
2026 1,540,443 518,288 2,058,731
2027 1,318,271 463,303 1,781,574
2028 927,038 422,426 1,349,464
2029 829,900 387,159 1,217,059

2030 - 2034 4,366,345 1,448,825 5,815,170

2035 - 2039 5.369.354 529.085 5,898.439
Total $ 15.941.138 4346312 20.287.450
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(4) Lease Receivable, Continued

The following is the amortization schedule for the deferred inflows of resources:

Year ending Revenue
2025 $ 1,631,423
2026 1,489,488
2027 1,264,773
2028 950,279
2029 850,201

2030 - 2034 3,970,335

2035 -2039 3.917.503
Total $ 14.074.002

(5) Capital Assets

Capital assets for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

Balance at Balance at
April 1, March 31,
2023 Increase Decrease 2024
Capital assets, not being depreciated
or amortized:
Land $ 4,147,151 - - 4,147,151
Construction in progress 3.801,328 4,429,590 - 8,230,918
Tétal capital assets not being
depreciated or amortized 7,948479 4,429,590 - 12,378,069
Capital assets, being depreciated
and amortized;
Land improvements 42,526,965 - - 42,526,965
Buildings 108,711,371 - - 108,711,371
Machinery and equipment 10,783,350 706,990 (201,746) 11,288,594
Right-to-use asset 275,981 9,681 (8,207) 277,455
Total capital assets beitig
depreciated and amortized 162,297,667 716,671 (209,953) 162,804,385
Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization for:
Land improvements (19,229,279) (1,703,873) - (20,933,152)
Buildings (47,878,198) (2,614,876) - (50,493,074)
Machinery and equipment (8,157,292)  (657,049) 201,746 (8,612,595)
Right-to-use asset (204,385) (60,264) 8,207 (256,442)
Total accumulated depreciation
and amortization (75,469,154) (5,036,062) 209,953  (80,295,263)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated and amortized, net 86,828,513  (4,319,391) - 82,509,122
Total capital assets, net $ 94,776,992 110,199 - 94,887,191
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(5) Capital Assets, Continued

Balance at Balance at
April 1, , March 31,
2022 Increase -Decrease 2023
Capital assets, not being depreciated
or amortized:
Land $ 4,147,688 ‘ - (537) 4,147,151
Construction in progress 4229288 307,827 (735,787) __ 3,801,328
Total capital assets not being
depreciated or amortized 8,376,976 307,827 (736,324) 7,948,479
Capital assets, being depreciated
and amortized:
Land improvements 42,526,965 - - 42,526,965
Buildings 108,711,371 - - 108,711,371
Machinery and equipment 10,101,995 681,355 - 10,783,350
Right-to-use asset 275,98 1; 2 - 275,981
Total capital assets being 1
depreciated and amortized 161,616,312 681,355 - 162,297,667
Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization for:.
Land improvements (17,512,038) (1,717,241) - (19,229,279)
Buildings (45,498,292)  (2,379,906) - (47,878,198)
Machinery and equipment (7,559,473) (597,819) - (8,157,292)
Riglit-to-use asset (146,062) (58,323) - (204,385)
Total awumulate& depreciation
and amortization (70,715,865) (4,753,289) - (75,469,154)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated and amortized, net 90,900,447 (4,071,934) - 86,828,513
Total capital assets, net $ 99277423 (3,764,107) (736,324) 94,776,992

(6) Donated Property

On January 31,2011, the Authority received title to a building from Sanmina-SCI Corporation in
partial satisfaction of a lease termination fee. The building was recorded at its estimated fair
value of $750,000, as determined by an independent appraisal and the Authority on the date

of transfer.

On December 26, 1974, the Authority received from the St. Regis Paper Company, all of the line
of railroad extending from Norwood, New York to Waddington, New York, known as the
Norwood & St. Lawrence Railroad, and its related assets. The railroad was recorded at its
estimated fair value as determined by the Authority on the date of transfer, of $783,022, which

was the original cost on the books of St. Regis Paper Company.
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(7) Construction in Progress

Construction in progress at March 31, 2024 and 2023 consists of the f&gllgwingi

2024 2023

Marine harbor deepening project $ 867,585 755,208
Airport lighting system 2,005,201 1,945,195
Airport master plan 216,507 214,507
Airport water project 214,712 214,712
Railroad bridge rehabilitation 105,642 100,004
Reyvitalization 2,349,048 69,874
Airport improvement program 310,700 46,100
Airport drainage project 2,161,523 453.728

$ 8230918 3,801,328

(8) Line of Credit

Effective December 31, 2017 the Authority entered into a line of credit agreement providing

available borrowings of $500,000 for specific capital projects. Outstanding borrowings bear

interest at 7.4375% and are collateralized by the Authority’s assets. The total amount

outstanding at March 31, 2024 for this agreement was $389,000. There was no outstanding

balance at March 31, 2023.

Effective August 5, 2022 the Authority entereddnto a line of credit agreement providing available
borrowings of $400,000 for alternate essential air services. Outstanding borrowings bear

interest at 5.0% and are collateralized by the Authority’s assets. The total amount outstanding

at March 31, 2024 and 2023 for this agreement was $309,244 and $187,483, respectively.

(9) Long—Tem; Debt

(a) Due to State of New York for First Instance Advances

Amount Amount Amount

Appropriations appropriated advanced repaid  Amount due
Chapter 864-1956 $ 15,000,000 15,006,084 3,650,925 11,355,159
Chapter 218-1958 7.000.000 6.690.717 100.000 6,590,717
$ 22,000,000 21,696,801 3,750,925 17,945,876

Add - New York State Auditor’s adjustment in 1974 to record first
instance advances to finance port terminal construction cost 684.098
Amount due New York State at March 31, 2024 and 2023 $ 18.629.974
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(9) Long-Term Debt, Continued

(a) Due to State of New York for First Instance Advances, Continued
The original debt repayment agreement with the State provided for the payment of net revenue
to the State when monies exceed the sum of $250,000 and $200,000 in the Bridge and Port
Fund comptroller’s cash accounts, respectively. Transfer of monies from the Bridge Fund
to the Port Fund is taken into consideration in determmmg this amount.

The Authority and the Director of the Budget of the State (Director) entered into a new
agreement during the fiscal year ended Marc.h 30, 1980, which increased the dollar limits
to $400,000 in the Bridge Fund and $250,000 in the Port Fusid. At such time monies held
in these funds exceeded these limits, the gxcess was to be deposited into a capital
construction fund in the State Comptroller’s custody. The agreement also provided for an
annual repayment, commencing July 1, 1979, of 50% of gross annual revenue less annual
expenditures approved by the Director for the preceding fiscal year of the Authority as so
certified by an external audit, provided however, that the minimum annual repayment
could not be less than $50,000. This agreement expired on March 31, 1990.

A first supplemental agreement was executed -on February 25, 1986, which allowed the
Authority to establish a capital improvement account not to exceed $500,000 in the
maintenance undistributed item of both the Bridge Fund and Port Fund budgets. The
monies in thése accounts could not be considered when computing the amounts of money
in either fund.

A second supplemental agreement was entered into on May 29, 1995 with the Director. This
agreement superseded all prior agreements with the State and provided that the Authority
was to repay the State an amount of $150,000 on March 31, 1996 and 1997, and $75,000
each year beginning in March 1998 through 2005. This agreement was considered
effective for the period April 1, 1990 through March 31, 2005.

The agreement pr0v1ded that in addition to the fixed repayment amounts, the Authority was
to pay all monies held in the Bridge Fund in excess of $750,000, provided however, that
monies in the bridge economic development account/capital improvement account up to
$850,000 and the monies in the bridge revolving fund up to $320,000 were not to be
considered. Also, monies held in the Port Fund in excess of $750,000 were to be paid to
the State, provided however, that monies in the port economic development
account/capital improvement account up to $850,000 and that monies in the port revolving
fund up to $300,000 were not to be considered. As of March 31, 2009, the Authority had
not exceeded these cash limits and consequently no additional debt payment was required.

A third supplemental agreement was entered into during the year ended March 31,2004 which
provided for annual payments of $75,000 for the years ending March 31, 2004 through
March 31, 2009 and provided an emergency deferral of any payment due in the event the
Authority encounters extraordinary financial circumstances.
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(9) Long-Term Debt, Continued

(a) Due to State of New York for First Instance Advances. Continued
The State approved the Authority’s request for a loan repaymerit forbearance on the annual
$75,000 payments that were due on March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 pursuant to the
repayment agreement, to allow the Authority to build up its revenue base and make
overdue capital investments. The $75,000 payments that were due on March 31, 2007,
2008 and 2009 were made by the Authority.

A fourth supplemental agreement was entered into which provides for annual payments of
$75,000 for the years ending March 31, 2010 through March 31, 2014, and provides an
emergency waiver of any payment due in the event the Authority encounters extraordinary
financial circumstances.

A fifth supplemental agreement was entered into in May of 2017 in connection with
improvements to the Authority’s airport facilities and the 2017 bond issuance. The fifth
supplemental agreement provides for annual payments of $75,000 by March 1% of each
year. In the event that the Authority shall encounter extraordinary financial circumstances,
the Authority may request emergency deferral of the payment due. At March 31, 2024
and 2023, $750,000 and $675,000, respectively, was deferred.

(b) Total Due to State-of New York

2024 2023

Amount due New York State - First Instance Advances $ 18,629,974 18,629,974
Less current portion (750.000) _ (675.000)
Total due to State of New York,
éxcluding current portion $17.879.974 17.954.974
(c) Bonds Payable
The Authority issued tax-exempt revenue bonds date August 1,
2017 in the amount of $6,330,000. These bonds will mature
on July 1, 2047 with interest of 5.75%, The bonds are
secured by a trust indenture with M&T Bank, as trustee, and
by an assignment agreement dated August 1, 2017 which
assigns to the trustec all revenues of the Authority. The
current portion is $112,695 net of amortization of the bond
discount of $7,305. $ 5,975,000 6,085,000
Less unamortized discount (171.663) _(178.966)
Bonds payable including discount 5,803,337 5,906,034
Less current portion, net of amortization
of discount (112.695) _(102.695)

$ 5,690,642 5,803,339
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(9) Long-Term Debt, Continued

(d) Notes Payable
Notes payable at March 31, 2024 and 2023 consist of the following:

Loan with Mapco Auto Parks, Ltd. with a fixed interest rate of
5.33% in the amount of $350,000. The note is payable in
equal monthly installments of $3,769 with aten yearterm. $ 107,401 145,675

Loan with Community Bank, N.A. dated December 21, 2018
with a fixed rate of 5.90% in the amount of $200,000. This
loan is secured by real property. The note is payable in
monthly installments of $2,627 with an eight year term. 69,792 105,687

Loan with Tompkins Trust Company dated December 31,2017
with a fixed rate of 4.08% in the amount of $3,950,000. This
loan is secured by the first lien on the assets of the industrial
park. This loan is payable in monthly installments of
$40,250 with a 10 year term. 1,989,936 2,381,489

Loan with Community Bank dated July 27, 2021 with a fixed
rate of 5.25% in the amount of $498,676. This loan is
secured by certain vehicles and equipment. The loan is
payable in monthly installments of $9,486 with a 5 year

term. 248.804 346.495
2,415,933 2,979,346
Less current portion (580.477) (563.413)

Notes payable, excluding current portion $ 1,835456 2415933

(e) Long-Term Debt Maturities
Long-term debt maturities over the next five years and thereafter as of March 31, 2024 are as

follows:
Due to State

Year ending of New York Bonds Payable Notes Payable
March 31, Principal Principal Interest Principal Interest
2025 $ 750,000 120,000 347417 580,477 98,540
2026 75,000 125,000 340,374 606,998 72,740
2027 75,000 135,000 332,899 518,530 67,075
2028 75,000 140,000 324,992 462,625 20,378
2029 75,000 150,000 316,655 247,303 3,056
2030 to 2034 375,000 900,000 1,438,087 - -
2035 to 2039 375,000 1,185,000 1,140,380 - -
2040 to 2044 375,000 1,585,000 745,068 - -
2045 to 2049 375,000 1,635,000 220,348 - -
Thereafter 16,079,974 - - - -
$18,629,974 5,975,000 5,206,220 2415933 261,789

Unamortized discount (171,663)

$5,803,337
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(9) Long-Term Debt, Continued

(f) Capital Lease Obligations
The Authority enters into lease agreements where the Authority assumes responsibility of
commercial loans and the assets that the commercial loans were used to acquire. The
terms of the commercial loans require the Authority to make annual payments, made in
monthly increments, from March 2019 through October 2028. At the end of the loan term,
ownership of the assets will be transferred fully te the Authority, if the Authority cheoses
to execute the buy-out option.

Capital lease obligations outstanding at March 31, 2024 and 2023 consist of the following:

Commencement  Final Interest
Description Date Maturity Rate 2024 2023
Minolta copier  8/11/2019 8/11/2023 3.94% $ - 732
Minolta copier  3/30/2021 4/1172025 3.94% 8,059 15,200
Wheel loader 5/10/2019 4/10/2024 3.94% 4,366 55,664
Symquest copier  9/27/2023 10/11/2028  3.94% _8.,656 -

$ 21,081 71,596
Lease liabilities are comprised of the following:

Year ending

March 31 Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 13,551 508 14,059
2026 2,460 241 2,701
2027 1,902 166 2,068
2028 1,978 89 2,067
2029 1,190 16 1.206

$ 21,081 1,020 22,101
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(10) Pension Plan

(a) General Information and Plan Description

The Authority participates in the New York State and Local Eniployees’ Retirement System.
This System is a cost sharing, multiple employer, public emmployee retirement system. The
System offers a wide range of plans and benefits which are related to years of service and
final average salary, vesting of retirement benefits, death and disability. The System
provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. The net position of
the System is held in the New York State Common Retirement Authonty (the Authority),
which was established to hold all net assets and record ¢hanges in plan net position
allocated to the System. The Comptroller of the State of New York serves as the trustee
of the Authority and is the administrative head of the System. System benefits are
established under the provision of the New York State Retirement and Social Security
Law (RSSL). Once a public employer elects to participate in the System, the election is
irrevocable. The New York State Constitution provides that pension membership is a
contractual relationship and plan benefits cannot be diminished or impaired. Benefits can
be changed for future members only by enactment of a State statute. The Authority also
participates in the Public Employees; Group Life Insuranee Plan (GLIP), which provides
death benefits in the form of life insurance. The System is included in the State’s financial
report as a pension trust fund. That report, including information with regard to benefits
provided, may be found at www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/publications/inex.php or obtained
by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany,
New York 12244.

The System is noncontributory except for employees who joined after July 27, 1976, who
contribute 3 percent of their salary for the first ten years of membership, and employees
who joined on or after January 1, 2010 and before April 1, 2012 who generally contribute
3.0 percent of their salary for their entire length of service. Those joining on or after April
1, 2012 are required to contribute between 3 and 6 percent, dependent on salary,
throughout their working careers. In addition, employee contribution rates under ERS tier
VI vary based on a sliding salary scale. The Comptroller annually certifies the actuarially
determined rates expressly used in computing the employers’ contributions based on
salaries paid during the Systems fiscal year ending March 31.

(b) Pension Liability (Asset), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension
At March 31, 2024 and 2023, the Authority reported the following liability (asset) for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) for ERS. The net pension liability
(asset) was measured as of March 31, 2023 and 2022. The total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation. The
Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) was based on a
projection of the Authority’s long-term share of contributions to the System relative to the
projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. This
information was provided by ERS in reports provided to the Authority.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(10) Pension Plan, Continued

(b) Pension Liability (Asset). Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension., Continued

Actuarial valuation date 4/1/2022 4/1/2021
Net pension liability (asset) $1,179,854 (500,235)
Authority’s proportion of the Plan’s net

pension liability (asset) 0.0055020% 0.0061194%
Change in proportion since prior measurement date 0.0006174  0.0012719

For the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, the Authority recognized pension expense of
$424,423 and $49,134, respectively, for ERS. At March 31, 2024 and 2023 the
Authority’s reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

2024 2023

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Qutflows of Inflows of Outflowsof Inflows of

Resources ources Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual
experience § 125,664 33,135 37,883 49,137
Changes indssumptions 573,013 6,333 834,836 14,087
Net diffetence between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 6,932 - 1,638,059
Changes in proportion and differences
between the Authority’s contributions
and proportionate share of contributions 75,998 104,581 114,158 105,697
Authority’s contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 219.296 - 208.766 -
Total $ 9293971 150981 1,195,643 1,806,980

Authority contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction
of the net pension liability in the System year ending March 31, 2024. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the
pension will be recognized as follows:

Year ending
2025 $ 160,140
2026 (64,633)
2027 212,480
2028 315,707
Total $ 623,694
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(10) Pension Plan, Continued
(c) Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability (asset) as of the measurement date was determined by using an
actuarial valuation as noted in the table below, with update procedures used to roll forward
the total pension liability (asset) to the measurement déte. The actuarial valuations used
the following actuarial assumptions:

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuations were as follows:

Measurement date March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Actuarial valuation date April 1, 2022 April 1, 2021
Investment rate of return

(net of investment expense,

including inflation) 5.9% 5.9%
Salary increases 4.4% 4.4%
Inflation 2.9% 2.7%
Cost-of-living adjustments 1.5% 1.4%

Annuitant mortality rates are based on April 1, 2015 - March 31, 2020 System’s experience
with adjustments for mortality improvements based on the Society of Actuaries® Scale
MP-2021. The previous actuarial valuations as of April 1, 2020 used the same
assuinptions to measure total pension liability.

The actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2022 valuation are based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period April 1, 2015 - April 1, 2020.

The long term rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by each the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class are summarized in the following table:
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(10) Pension Plan, Continued

(c) Actuarial Assumptions, Continued

Measurement date March 31, 2023
Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Aloeation Rate of Return*
Domestic equity 32.00% 4.30%
International equity 15.00% 6.85%
Private equity 10.00% 7.50%
Real estate 9.00% 4.60%
Opportunistic/ARS portfolio 3.00% 5.38%
Credit 4.00% 5.43%
Real assets 3.00% 5.84%
Fixed income 23.00% 1.50%
Cash 1.00% 0.00%

*The real rate of return is net of the long-term inflation assumption of 2.50%.

(d) Discount Rate
The discount rate used to ealeulate the total pension liability (asset) was 5.90% for March 31,
2024 dnd 2023. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes
that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and
that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially.
Based upon the assumptions, the System’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore the long term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability (asset).

(e) Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to the Discount
Rate Assumption
The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)
calculatef using the discount rate of 5.90%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1-percentage point lower (4.90%) or 1-percentage point higher (6.90%) than
the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Assumption Increase
(4.90%) (5.90%) (6.90%)

Employer’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) $ 2851202 1,179.854 (216.751)
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(10) Pension Plan, Continued
(f) Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position ,‘
The components of the current-year net pension liability (asset) 6f all participating employers
as of the respective valuation dates, were as follows:

(Dollars in Millions)
Measurement date 3/31/2023 3/31/2022
Employers’ total pension liability $ 232,627 223,875
Plan net position (211.183) (232.050)
Employers’ net pension liability (asset) $ 21444 (8.175)
Ratio of plan net position to the Employers’ total
pension liability (asset) 90.78% 103.65%

(2) Contributions to the Pension Plan

Employer contributions are paid annually based on the System’s fiscal year which ends on
March 31%. Retirement contributions as of March 31, 2024 and 2023 represent the
projected employer contribution for the petiod of April 1, 2023 through March 31, 2024
and April 1, 2022 through Mareh 31, 2023, respectively, based on paid ERS wages
multiplied by the employer’s contribution rate, by tier. This amount has been recorded as
deferred outflows of resources in the accompanying financial statements. Retirement
contributions paid to the System for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 were
$219,296 and $208,766, respectively.

(11) Postemplovment Benefits Other Than Pengic_)ns

(a) Plan Description and Benefits
Total amount charged to operations for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 amounted

to expenditures of $531,424 and revenues of $55,601, respectively. At March 31, 2024
and 2023, the liability for active and retired employers amounted to $2,059,803 and
$1,289,684, respectively.

The number of participants as of April 1, 2023 the last actuarial measurement date, was as

follows:
Active employees 27
Retired employees _8
Total 35

Funding Policy - The Authority currently pays for postemployment health care benefits on a
pay-as-you-go basis. These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will
continue. There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB
Statement No. 75, paragraph 4.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(11) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, Continued

(b) Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs
The total OPEB liability in the April 1, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the
measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Salary increases 3.50%
Discount rate 3.50%
Rate of inflation 2.70%
Healthcare cost trend rates 7.80% for 2024, decreasing to an ultimate
rate of 4.14%
(c) Changes in the Total OPEB Liability
2024 2023
Total OPEB liability as of beginning of year $ 1.298.684 1.351.912
Changes for the year:
Service cost 40,131 47,052
Interest on total OPEB liability 35,487 31,732
Changes in benefit terms 565,096 -
Differencés between actual and expected experience 190,849 -
Changes in assumptions and other inputs 7,406 (46,227)
Bengfit payments (77.850) (85.785)
Total changes 761.119 (53.228)
Total OPEB liability as of end of year $ 2,059.803 1,298,684

(d) Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the total OPEB lLiability of the Authority, as well as what the
" Authority’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1-percentage-point lower (2.50%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.50%) than the current

discount rate:
1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(2.50%) (3.50%) (4.50%)
Tetal OPEB liability $ 2267930 2,059,803 1,877.483

This analysis represents sensitivity of the OPEB liability as of March 31, 2024.

(e) Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Costs Trend Rates
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the
Authority’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a rate that is 1-

percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current health care cost trend
rate:
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(11) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, Continued
(e) Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Costs Trend Rates

Continued
1% Trend 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
Total OPEB liability $1.847281  2,059.8 2.309,793

This analysis represents sensitivity of the OPEB liability as of March 31, 2024.

(f) OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB )
At March 31, 2024 and 2023, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

2024 2023

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflowsof Qutflows of Inflows of

Resources ~ Resources  Resources  Resources
Differences between actual
and expected $ 166,691 411,836 - 522,764
Changes of assumptions 44,845 147,179 50,423 182,683
Contributiens subsequent
to the measurement date 117.052 - 77.850 -

$328588 559,015 128273 705,447

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ending March 31, 2025. Amounts reported as deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ending

2025 $ (109,070)
2026 (108,525)
2027 (100,689)
2028 (91,124)
2029 19,199

“Thereafter 42.730

$ (347.479)
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(12) Restricted Net Position

Restricted net position consists of the following at March 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Compensating balance requirement $ 332,280 227,973
Bond payment reserve 231,910 220,275
Debt service reserve 535,602 511,027

$ 4099792 959275
(13) Contingencies

Financial awards from Federal, State, and local governmental entities in the form of grants are
subject to special audits. Such audits could result in claims against the Authority for
disallowed costs or noncompliance with grantor restrictions. No‘provision has been made for
any liabilities that may arise from such audits since the amounts, if any, cannot be determined
at this date.

Certain claims arising in the ordinary course of business have been filed against the Authority. In
the opinion of manapement, all such matters are adequately covered by insurance.

(14) CARES Act CRRSA- Airport Grants

During the years ended March 31, 2023, the Authority received funding from the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) airport grants amounting to $1,169,647. The purpose of the funding is
to help offset a decline in revenues arising from diminished airport operations as a result of
the COVID-19 Public Health Emergency. These distributions do not need to be repaid to the
U.S. government, assuming providers comply with the terms and conditions. No amounts
were teceived during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(15) Fiscal Viability

The Authority has a working capital surplus of $5,670,304 at March 31, 2024 and an operating
loss of $9,293,684 for the year then ended.

Management’s plan to address the fiscal liability of the Authority has been severely impacted by
the COVID-19 pandemic. The Ogdensburg-Prescott International Bridge was closed to all
but essential traffic from the end of March 2020 through August 9, 2021, when Canada
allowed international crossings with restrictions. The United States reopened its border on
November 8,2021, also with restrictions. Allegiant Air has terminated low cost carrier service
to/from Ogdensburg to Florida. Sky West’s request to terminate its EAS to/from OGS to BWI
was approved with the caveat that new EAS had to be in place prior to Sky West’s departure.
EAS has been secured with the arrival of Contour Airlines on July 1%,
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(15) Fiscal Viability, Continued

Bridge Traffic: Car and truck traffic on the bridge has recoveréd to between 78% to 82%
of pre-pandemic levels. In 2024, there was an overall inerease in traffic of 23%. The
bridge painting and rehabilitation has been completed this year without interruption to
bridge traffic.

Airport Operations: The Authority is still investigating options to recruit additional
airlines to the airport. AEAS was secured with'the arrival of Contour.

In the interim, further grants, including AAmerican Rescue Plan Act funds, have been
awarded to airports to address airport operational costs. Ogdensburg International Airport
has been able to use these funds to subsidize normal operating costs and cover additional
pandemic required cleaning & disinfecting expenses and signage, etc.

Durmg the year ended Mach 81, 2023, the Authonty teceived an alternative essential air
service program grant. The program was put in place for 8 27 month term for pubic charter
operations. Revenue recorded for this program amounted to $4,653,270 and $3,091,766
for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND PORT AUTHORITY
Required Supplementary Information
Changes in Authority's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Year ended March 31, 2024

Total OPEB liability: 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Service cost $ 40,131 47,052 @&42 78,382 59,382
Interest on total OPEB liability 35,487 31,732 50,527 57,534 82,152
Changes in benefit terms 565,096 - - - -
Differences between actual and expected

experience 190,849 - (679,560) - (89,656)
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 7,406 46,227) (198,728) 78,650 9,172
Benefit payments (77,850) (85,785) (92,425) (97,583) (86,744
Net change in total OPEB liability 761,119 (53,228) -~ (835,244) 116,983 (25,694)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 1,298,684 1351912  2)187,156 2,070,173 2,095,867
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 2,059,803 1,298,684 1,351,912 2,187,156 2,070,173
Covered payroll $1,563,128 1,763,993 2,149,692 2,081,138 2,244,733
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of

covered payroll 131.8% 73.6% 62.9% 105.1% 92.2%
Notes to schedule:

Changes of assutnptions - Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the discount
rate each period, The following are the diScount rates used in each period:

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
3.50% 2.73% 2.34% 227% 2.74%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-

year trend is compiled, the Authority should present information for those years for which information is
available.

There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB Statement No. 75, paragraph 4.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE AND AUTHORITY

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Year ended March 31, 2024
NYSERS Pension Plag ’
2024 2023 2022 202} 2020 2019 2018 2017

Authority's proportion of the net pension
liability (asset) 0.0055020% 0.0061194% 0.0073913% 0.0061217% 0.0062324% 0.0060744% 0.0056874% 0.0058747%
Authority's proportionate share of the net ]

pension liability (asset) $1,179,854 (500,235) 7,360 1,621,056 441,587 196,049 534,399 942,900
Authority's covered payroll $ 1,807,010 1,781,984 1,904,683 2,081,138 1,973,822 1,797,158 1,793,263 1,577,651
Authority's proportionate share of the net

pension liability (asset) as a percentage ’

of its covered payroll 65.29% 28.07% 0.39% 77.89% 22.37% 10.91% 29.80% 59.77%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pension liability (asset) 90.78% 103.65% 99.95% 86.39% 96.27% 98.24% 94.70% 90.70%

Note to schedule

This schedule is presented to illutrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Authority should present
information for those years for which information is available.
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as of May 31, 2024

Current Assets:

Cash - Checking Accounts
Cash - Reserves & Other Restricted Accounts
Cash - Security Deposits
Accounts Receivable - Regular
Accounts Receivable - AEAS
Grants Receivable
Investments
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets:

Land & Land Improvements
Buildings & Building Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Vehicles
Furniture & Fixtures
Signage
Bond Issuance Costs - 2017 Series
Total Fixed Assets
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net Fixed Assets

ASSETS: Things that OBPA OWNS

$ 174,561
7,626,644
175,705
119,859
856,866
441,005

65,415
17,887

$ 9,477,943

$ 46,674,118
108,711,370
8,946,184
2,018,770
142,506
181,132
178,968

$ 166,853,049

Other Assets:

Construction in Progress

TOTAL ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

$ 86,050,217

1,323,916

$ 8,609,468

$ 105,461,544

LIABILITIES: Things OBPA OWES

@

Accounts Payable - Regular 661,466
Accounts Payable - AEAS/Contour 406,900
Accounts Payable - NYS Retirement 124,033
Accounts Payable - All Project A/P 1,059,662
Current Portion of Long Term Debt $ 1,163,197
Accrued Expenses 21,775,215
Total Current Liabilities 25,190,473
Other General Liabilities 577,577

Long Term Liabilities

Long Term Portion of Long Term Debt 8,096,930
Total Long Term Liabilities 8,096,930
Capital 71,596,564
TOTAL LIABILITIES 105,461,544
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Restricted Accounts - Top 5 Bank Accounts
Consolidated Reserve Fund - CBNA

Debt Service Reserve Fund - Wilmington Trust
Tompkins Trust Security Reserve Deposit
M&T Deposit - Bond Payable Reserve Funds
Aviation Credit Card Account

8 Additional Restricted Bank Accounts share the balance

Construction in Progress - Top 4 Projects
Airport Revitalization Project

Airport EA PH 1 Drainage & Terminal Area
Airport MASLF

Port - Dock Wall Expansion

6 Additional Projects share the balance

Regular Accounts Payable - Top 10 Vendors
Parsons Transportation Group - Bridge Inspection
Wladis

Excellus

City of Ogdensburg

AEP - Solar

Ascent Aviaiton

National Grid

E-Transit

Strategic Development

OMLC

73 +/- Additional Vendors share the balance

6,268,661
539,879
351,687
310,560

61,205

7,531,892

94,752

2,642,030
2,161,523
2,005,201

626,172

7,434,926

1,174,542

143,597
114,175
39,321
35,908
33,399
29,936
26,560
26,194
24,000
23,524

496,613

164,853

PAID - JUNE 2024
$39,321
$23,812

$29,936
$8,129
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
BUILDING OCCUPANCY REPORT
July 17, 2024

Commerce Park Campus
Building % Occupied Total SF Available Occupied Tenant
1 70% 30,000 8,938

7,356 Lincare

3,626 AB Thermal Technology
500 West End Asset Management
424 Miracle Ear / Quality Hearing
211 KDM Analytics
187 Nova Networks

8,758 Non-Rentable

3 100% 15,000 0
10,000 NAC Logistics
4,860 AN Deringer
140 Non-Rentable

4 42% 20,000 11,659
4,892 T-Base Communications
2,324 Day Automation
850 5G Technologies USA
275 Non-Rentable

6 100% 30,000 0
28,825 Strader-Ferris
1,175 Non-Rentable

11 100% 40,000 0
20,000 Strader-Ferris
20,000 Frank Ralphs, Inc.

12 100% 11,200 0
8,776 T-Base Communications
2,424 NYS Legal Service

14 100% 24,000 0
23,220 Med-Eng
780 Non-Rentable

88% 170,200 20,597 149,603
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Bridge Administration Building

Suite % Occupied  Total SF Available Occupied Tenant
BAB 100% 5,316 0
103 536 OBPA Economic Development
104 1,054 SUNY IT
201A 120 Demers, Inc.
201B 140 Cortech/Penski
201C 368 OBPA Executive Director
204 1,689 Stephens Media Group
205 207 Griffith/Lambert
206 182 Giriffith/Lambert
207A 170 Dan Dodge
207B 220 Mack Global Engineering
208 168 Barbara Pleet
209 180 Knudsen Systems
210 292 Glenda Jones
100% 5,316 0 5,316
Port of Ogdensburg
Building % Occupied _ Total SF__Available Occupied Tenant
P2 100% 30,000 0 30,000 Compass Minerals/Thawrox
P3 100% 20,000 0 19,607 Ingredion - Grain Storage
393 NYOG Office
P4 100% 15,000 0 15,000 Corning
P5 33% 40,000 26,667 13,333 Ingredion - Grain Storage
P6 40% 20,000 12,000 8,000 Port Operations
P8 100% 23,000 0 23,000 Compass Minerals/Thawrox
Yard 100% 43,560 0 43,560 Steel Beam Storage
80% 191,560 38,667 152,893
Ogdensburg International Airport
Building % Occupied  Total SF Available Occupied Tenant
Terminal 100% 10,800 0 10,800 TSA/Contour
Hangar 100% 3,672 0 3,672 Used for OGS Equipment Storage
T-Hangar 100% 11,550 0
1 1,036 Robertson
2 1,108 Richardson
3 1,036 Proven
4 1,036 Weston
5 1,036 Mueller
6 1,036 Bogardus
7 1,108 Oudheusden
8 1,036 Tate Jr.
9 1,036 Burtch
10 1,036 Richardson
1,046 Mechanical / Operations Storage
100% 26,022 0 26,022
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
JULY 17, 2024, BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem A. General Administration
1. Acceptance of Federal Aid Local Project Agreement for the OBPA-
Bridge Maintenance and Rehabilitation Project for the Ogdensburg-

Prescott International Bridge

REPORT:

The Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority has received a grant from the New York State
Department of Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration in the amount of
$15,000,000 for the OBPA - Bridge Maintenance and Rehabilitation Project for the
Ogdensburg-Prescott International Bridge (PIN 775428). This resolution authorizes the
implementation and funding of $188,000 for initial project design work in the first instance
100% of the federal-aid and State Program-aid eligible costs, of a transportation federal-
aid project, and appropriating funds therefore. -

RESOLUTION:

WHEREAS, a Project for the OBPA - Bridge Maintenance and Rehabilitation, P.I.N.
775428 (“the Project”) is eligible for funding under Title 23 U.S. Code, as amended, that
calls for the apportionment of the costs of such program to be borne, at the ratios as shown
in the Schedule A of this agreement.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to advance the Project,

NOW, THEREFORE, the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority Board, duly convened
does hereby,

RESOLVE, that the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority hereby approves the above-
subject project; and it is hereby further;

RESOLVED, that the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority to pay in
the first instance 100% of the federal and non-federal share of the cost of $188,000 work
for the Project or portions thereof: and it is further;

RESOLVED, that the sum of the $188,000 is hereby appropriated from the Ogdensburg
Bridge and Port Authority’s Capital Budget and made available to cover the cost of
participation in the above a phase of the Project; and it is further;

RESOLVED that in the event the full federal and non-federal share costs of the project
exceeds the amount appropriated above, the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority Board
of Directors shall convene as soon as possible to appropriate said excess amount
immediately upon the notification by the Executive Director thereof, and it is further:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority be
and is hereby named as the Responsible Local Official (RLO) for the Ogdensburg Bridge
and Port Authority and is authorized to execute all necessary Agreements, certifications or
reimbursement requests for the Federal Aid on behalf of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port
Authority Board of Directors with the New York State Department of Transportation in
connection with the advancement or approval of the Project and providing for the
administration of the Project and the Authority’s first instance funding of project costs and




permanent funding of the local share of federal-aid and state-aid eligible Project costs and
all Project costs within appropriations therefore that are not so eligible, and it is further;

RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution be filed with the New York State
Commissioner of Transportation by attaching it to any necessary Agreement in connection
with the Project, and it is further;

RESOLVED, this Resolution shall take effect immediately.

Vi 2 ;
Ak 1

INITIATOR/PREPARER:  Steven Lawrence APPROVED: 7> (L€,
MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes No
SECONDED BY: Abstained By:
STATE OF NEW YORK )

)ss:

COUNTY OF ST. LAWRENCE )

I, Vernon Burns, Chairperson of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority of the State
of New York, do hereby certify by such Board at a legally convened meeting held on July 17,
2024, on file as part of the Minutes of such meeting, and that the same is a true copy thereof,
and the whole of such original. | further certify that the full Board consists of
members and that of such members were present at such meeting and that five of
such members voted in favor of the above Resolution.

Vernon Burns
OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY

(SEAL)

Notary Public
State/Province of
My Commission Expires:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
July 17, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem A. General Administration
2. Acceptance of 2023-2024 Audited Financials

REPORT:

EFPR Group, auditors for the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority, have carried
out the site work for and prepared the audited financial statements for fiscal year
ended March 31, 2024. The financial statements were presented to the Board of
Directors for the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority on July 17, 2024.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port
Authority does hereby approve and accept the audited financial statements for the
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024 as
prepared and presented by EFPR Group.

n
4
/)

INITIATOR/PREPARER: Patricia Nisco APPROVED BY: ;’rf{--i'zic/‘ e~

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes No

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
July 17, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item B. Ogdensburg — Prescott International Bridge
1) Approval of Jacobson Mower Repair

REPORT:

The Authority’s 2013 Jacobsen mower, which is an important piece of equipment for keeping up
with the lawncare of the OBPA’s expansive grounds, has been experiencing engine and
overheating issues. Maintenance employees spent this spring going through the mower repairing
those items that appeared to be causing the issues. Unfortunately, those repairs have not solved
the problems. MTE Equipment Solutions, a Jacobsen dealer and certified service repair shop, was
contacted to inspect and offer a quote for the repairs. Their diagnosis and quote for repairs is
attached.

Staff reviewed the details of this repair service and recommends procuring this service from MTE
with their detailed knowledge of the Jacobsen line of equipment.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Director of Operations is hereby authorized and directed to execute a Purchase
Order with MTE to fix the Jacobson mower with engine and overheating issues, a total cost not to
exceed $8,111.20.

S __..}/-"""'.
INITIATOR/PREPARER: James D. Chase APPROVED BY: ,’:Zi(g(/ ";'W

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes No

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:
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EQUIPMENT BALUTIONS, INC.
33 THRUWAY PARK DR.
WEST HENRIETTA, NY 14586
MTE.US.COM » 585-334-0100

SERVICE COMMITTED
Document: 01-422354 PO: C R311

Date: 6/7/2024 Custld: OGDENS BRIDGE &

Cust Email: SLAWRENCE@OGDENSPORT.COM

Phone: (315) 393-4080 x226
Salesperson:  pklaiber
User: Icampany
Bill To: Ship To:
Ogdensburg Bridge & Port 547603 Ogdensburg Bridge & Port
One Bridge Plaza Yantzy Morrow
Ogdensburg, NY 13669 One Bridge Plaza
Attn: Yancy
Ogdensburg, NY 13669 US
(315) 393-4080 x0000
CRACKED BLOCK OR HEADER

HEAD GASKET-HEAD COOLANT WONT HOLD PRESSURE FOR MORE THAN 5 MINUTES

NUMEROUS LEAKS

CONTACT JAMES: 315-528-4760

JCHASE@OGDENSPORT.COM
Opened: 6/7/2024 Responsible Tech: kschnautigal
Work Order No: 01-422354 My Ref: CR311
Pickup Date: 6/6/2024 Delivery Date:
Unit No: 31633 Unit Make: Jacobsen
Unit Serial: 6917102379 Unit Model: JMC.69171
Unit Desc: R-311T Unit Tag:
Unit Meter: 1,035.0 Hours
C R311/0GDENDBURG BRIDGE
Item Type Description Qty Tax Price  Discount Net Price
DIAGNOSE
TIME SPENT TO DIAGNOSE MACHINE
PRESSURE TESTED COOLING SYSTEM AND FOUND LEAK OUT OF 2 WATER PUMP MTG BOLTS
EXHAUST GASKETS ARE BLOWN
UNIT HAS NUMEROUS HYD LEAKS
DECK SWITCHES HAVE BEEN BYPASSED
4 WD IS INOPERABLE
NEEDS CASTER WHEEL WORK
WING LIFT ARMS AND CYLINDERS ARE WORN QUT
NEEDS ENGINE SERVICE COMPLETED
*NOTE" UNIT CAME IN AND WOULD NOT STAY RUNNING. FOUND AND REPLACED STRIPPED OUT BATTERY BOLT &
SOLENOID RELAY HAD BAD CONNECTION. UNIT HAD TO BE WASHED AND DEGREASED UNDERNEATH IN ORDER
TO FIND ALL OF THE LEAKS
ADDITIONAL 1.3 HOURS SPENT TO REVISE QUOTE PER CUSTOMER REQUEST ON 6/27
SL  SERVICE OF CUSTOMER OWNED EQUIPMENT 11.5166 $175.00 $2,015.41
|Remark RE  R311 M#JMC.69171 S#6917102379
Segment Total: $2,015.41

2ND DIAGNOSIS

DIAGNOSIS OF OVERHEATING ISSUE

AFTER SPEAKING WITH CUSTOMER, WAS TOLD UNIT WAS ALSO OVERHEATING
FLUSHED COOLING SYSTEM AND TESTED RADIATOR

FOUND THERE WAS NO THERMOSTAT IN UNIT. INSTALLED NEW THERMOSTAT
REFILLED COOLING SYSTEM AND TEST RAN. UNIT STILL OVERHEATING

FOUND COOLING FAN WAS DISASSEMBLED AND INSTALLED BACKWARDS
REMOVED AND REPLACED COOLING FAN. TEST RAN AND ISSUE WAS CORRECTED

Page: 10f 3




SERVICE COMMITTED

Document: 01-422354 PO: C R311
Date: 6/7/2024 Custld: OGDENS BRIDGE &

MTE

EQUIPMENT SALUTIONS, INC.
33 THRUWAY PARK DR.
WEST HENRIETTA, NY 14586
MTE.US.COM « 585-334-0100

Cust Email: SLAWRENCE@OGDENSPORT.COM

Phone: (315) 3934080 x226
Salesperson:  pklaiber
User: Icampany
Bill To: Ship To:
Ogdensburg Bridge & Port 547603 Ogdensburg Bridge & Port
One Bridge Plaza Yantzy Morrow
Ogdensburg, NY 13669 One Bridge Plaza
Attn: Yancy
Ogdensburg, NY 13669 US
(315) 393-4080 x0000
SL SERVICE OF CUSTOMER OWNED EQUIPMENT 7.7000 $175.00 $1,347.50
IANTIFREEZE PA  SER - ANTIFREEZE *QUART* 8.0000 $2.00 $16.00
14134371 PA  JMC - ASSY THERMOSTAT 1.0000 $91.08 $91.08
Segment Total: $1,454.58

NEEDED REPAIRS

ENGINE WORK, 4 WD REPAIR AND WING DECK SWITCH REPAIR ONLY PER CUSTOMER. CUSTOMER ADDED
OVERHEATING ISSUE

REPLACE ENGINE OIL PRESSURE SWITCH

REPLACE BOTH WING DECK PROX SWITCHES

REMOVE AND REPLACE TURBO AND EXHAUST MANIFOLD AND REPLACE GASKETS
REPLACE INJECTOR PIPE RETURN LINE

REPLACE LEAKING WATER PUMP GASKET

REPLACE 4 WD MAGNET AND SPOOL ON CONTROL VALVE

REMOVE AND REPLACE ENGINE TIMING COVER

REPLACE GASKET AND CRANK SEAL

CHANGE ENGINE OIL AND FILTER

CHANGE AIR FILTERS
CHANGE FUEL FILTER
WASH UNIT
SL SERVICE OF CUSTOMER OWNED EQUIPMENT 19.7500 $175.00 $3,456.25
1A051-73430 PA KUB - GASKET,WATER PUMP 1.0000 $10.40 $10.40
4134532 PA  JMC - COIL, SOLENOID SERVICE (D 1.0000 $88.41 $88.41
554018 PA  JMC - SWITCH,OIL 1.0000 $36.75 $36.75
4125831 PA  JMC - SWITCH, PROXIMITY 2.0000 $105.83 $211.66
446102 PA  JMC - LOCKWASHER #4 MED .2090D, 4.0000 $5.27 $21.08
I834606 PA  JMC - GASKET,EXHAUST 1.0000 $10.87 $10.87
HH164-32430 PA KUB - OIL FILTER 1.0000 $11.29 $11.29
4133820 PA DAW - FILTER, PRIMARY P822768 1.0000 $39.54 $39.54,
4133821 PA DAW - FILTER, SAFETY P822769 1.0000 $38.27 $38.27
HH166-43560 PA KUB - ELEMENT, FUEL FILTER 1.0000 $27.19 $27.19
10W30 PA  SER-10W30 OIL QUART 10.0000 $7.35 $73.50
ANTIFREEZE PA SER - ANTIFREEZE *QUART* 8.0000 $2.00 $16.00
~FEDEX GRDT MC FEDEX GRD - NY,VT,CT,RI NJ PA 1.0000 $100.00 $100.00
SER ENV MC  FEE - SHOP SUPPLIES 1.0000 $150.00 $150.00
SER PU MC  SERVICE PICKUP AND DEL 1.0000 $350.00 $350.00
Segment Total: $4,641.21
Labor: $6,819.16
Paris: $692.04

Page: 2 of 3



SERVICE COMMITTED

Document: 01-422354 PO: C R311
Date: 6/7/2024 Custld: OGDENS BRIDGE &

MTE

EJUIPMENT SOLUTIONS, INC.
33 THRUWAY PARK DR.
WEST HENRIETTA, NY 14586
MTEUS.COM « 585-334-0100

Cust Email: SLAWRENCE@OGDENSPORT.COM
Phone: (315) 3934080 x226

Salesperson:  pklaiber

User: lcampany

Bill To: Ship To:
Ogdensburg Bridge & Port 547603 Ogdensburg Bridge & Port
One Bridge Plaza Yantzy Morrow
Ogdensburg, NY 13669 One Bridge Plaza
Attn: Yancy
Ogdensburg, NY 13669 US
(315) 393-4080 x0000

[Misc Charges: $600.00]

Sub Total:

Total Tax:
Estimated/Current Invoice Total:

Estimated/Current Balance Due On This Invoice: $8,111.20

Page: 30f 3



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
JULY 17, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem C. Commerce Park Campus
1. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 1 with NAC Logistics.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated Lease Supplement No. 1 with NAC Logistics for 10,000 square feet
of warehousing space in Building 3 of the Commerce Park Campus for a six (6) month
period commencing September 1, 2024 and terminating February 28, 2025 at a rate of
$4.34 per square foot equaling $3,616.67 per month, $21 ,700.02 for the six (6) month
period, exclusive of utilities.

All other terms and conditions of the original Lease Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute
Lease Supplement No. 1 with NAC Logistics for 10,000 square feet of warehousing
space in Building 3 of the Commerce Park Campus for a six (6) month period
commencing September 1, 2024 and terminating February 28, 2025 at a rate of $4.34
per square foot equaling $3,616.67 per month, $21,700.02 for the six (6) month period,
exclusive of utilities, and be it;

FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other terms and conditions of the original Lease
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

7”7
| ’
wry s
il d

-,_,..—_/,
INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyk  APPROVED BY: _ /,é.ﬂf??%;p (e

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes 0O No O

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
JULY 17, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item D. Ogdensburg International Airport
1. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Frederick A. Proven.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated a new Lease Agreement with Frederick A. Proven for T-Hangar No.
3 at the Ogdensburg International Airport for a one (1) year period commencing
September 1, 2024 and terminating August 31, 2025 at a rate of $240.00 per month,
$2,880.00 for the one (1) year period, inclusive of utilities.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a
new Lease Agreement with Frederick A. Proven for T-Hangar No. 3 at the Ogdensburg
International Airport for a one (1) year period commencing September 1, 2024 and

terminating August 31, 2025 at a rate of $240.00 per month, $2,880.00 for the one (1)
ear period, inclusive of utilities.

INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyk APPROVED BY: 77l (lic.

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes O No O

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
JULY 17, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item D. Ogdensburg International Airport
2. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Giass Box Research
Company.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated a new Lease Agreement with Glass Box Research Company for T-
Hangar No. 5 at the Ogdensburg International Airport for a one (1) year period
commencing September 1, 2024 and terminating August 31, 2025 at a rate of $240.00
per month, $2,880.00 for the one (1) year period, inclusive of utilities.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a
new Lease Agreement with Glass Box Research Company for T-Hangar No. 5 at the
Ogdensburg International Airport for a one (1) year period commencing September 1,
2024 and terminating August 31, 2025 at a rate of $240.00 per month, $2,880.00 for the
one (1) year period, inclusive of utilities.

I a
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INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyk APPROVED BY: _ _._/f"--”’[ffl-faf" C (JW

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes 0O No [

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
JULY 17, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem D. Ogdensburg International Airport
3. Approval of Customer Estimate Sheet and Grant of Easement with
Liberty Utilities Corp.

REPORT:

In furtherance of the OGS Gateway Improvement Project and to improve airport
operational efficiencies in the new facility, staff has engaged Liberty Utilities Corp. to
supply natural gas service to OGS. The estimated cost for the installation of the natural
gas main and associated easement documentation is approximately $15,222.22 which
is anticipated to be paid for by the Gateway Improvement Project funding. The utility
|_plan drawings outlining the installation path is provided as Exhibit A of this Resolution.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a
Customer Estimate Sheet and Grant of Easement Agreement with Liberty Utilities Corp.
to supply natural gas service to OGS at an approximate cost of $15,222.22 for the
installation of the natural gas main and associated easement documentation.

.
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INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyk  APPROVED BY: "/ Ly~ CL Cee

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes [J No O

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:




EXHIBIT A
UTILITY PLAN DRAWINGS
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OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
JULY 17, 2024 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item E. Port of Ogdensburg
1. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 9 with Corning Incorporated.

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated Lease Supplement No. 9 with Corning Incorporated for 15,000
square feet of commercial warehousing space in Building 4 at the Port of Ogdensburg
for a two (2) year period commencing September 1, 2025 and terminating August 31,
2027 at a rate of $2.73 per square foot for the period beginning September 1, 2025 and
ending August 31, 2026, equaling $3,412.50 per month, $40,950.00 for the one (1) year
period, and at a rate of $2.80 per square foot for the period beginning September 1,
2026 and ending August 31, 2027, equaling $3,500.00 per month, $42,000.00 for the
one (1) year period, inclusive of utilities.

All other terms and conditions of the original Lease Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute
Lease Supplement No. 9 with Corning Incorporated for 15,000 square feet of commercial
warehousing space in Building 4 at the Port of Ogdensburg for a two (2) year period
commencing September 1, 2025 and terminating August 31, 2027 at a rate of $2.73 per
square foot for the period beginning September 1, 2025 and ending August 31, 2026,
equaling $3,412.50 per month, $40,950.00 for the one (1) year period, and at a rate of
$2.80 per square foot for the period beginning September 1, 2026 and ending August 31,
2027, equaling $3,500.00 per month, $42,000.00 for the one (1) year period, inclusive of
utilities, and be it;

FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other terms and conditions of the original Lease
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

-

INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyk APPROVED BY: __~ i '“7"{_, 5225.4,4_

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes [ No O

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
July 17, 2024, BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem E. Port of Ogdensburg
2. Port Dock Expansion-Approval of Work Order No. 24-02 with FVD

Engineering Services, S.C.

REPORT:

FVD Engineering Services, S.C. has provided the Authority with Work Order (24-01) agreement to
perform State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQR) implementation for the Terminal and
modified dredging disposal location as part of the Channel Deepening Project Ogdensburg Harbor.
The scope of services for this contract will be complete upon finalization of the SEQR process.

The SEQR is performed as a task to move towards a MARAD grant agreement. Any work performed
prior to grant agreement is not eligible for reimbursement under MARAD/PIDP. This work will have to
funded solely by the Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority.

The Work Order No. 24-02 FVD costs associated with providing these services are
on a Time and Materials basis in order to provide the most flexibility to move this project forward, with
a total amount not-to-exceed $5,000.00.

Staff recommends approval of this agreement with FVD Engineering Services, S.C.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a Work Order
Agreement for Work Order No. 24-02 with FVD Engineering Services, S.C. to perform State
Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQR) implementation for the Terminal and modified dredging
disposal location as part of the Channel Deepening Project Ogdensburg Harbor for a cost not to
exceed $5,000.00.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that:
The Agreement for Professional Engineering Services between Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority
and FVD Engineering Services, S.C. for Professional Services for Port of Ogdensburg Dock

Expansion, dated July 2016, shall govern all Work Orders. -

14'_",,_,4_{, A ,
INITIATOR/PREPARER: __ Steve Lawrence APPROVED BY: 7/ /Ll /’ Weeo <
MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes No

SECONDED BY: Abstained By:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
JULY 17, 2024, BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item F. New York & Ogdensburg Railroad
1) Approval of Grant Agreement with the New York State Department of
Transportation

REPORT:

The Authority has received a Passenger and Freight Rail Assistance Program (PFRAP)
Funding Grant Agreement from the New York State Department of Transportation
(NYSDOT)which provides for the Track Rehabilitation for the “286K to the Port-Phase 1
(Project) identified as NYDOT PIN 7935.37.301

The project will replace approximately 10 miles of rail, two turnouts, one public and one
private crossing, and line/surface track to upgrade a segment of the Ogdensburg branch to
accommodate industry-standard 286k cars.

The Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority (OBPA) desires to advance the Project by
committing the fund amount of $556,892 for the local OBPA match, the breakdown of the
funding shares being:

New York State Department of Transportation $5,012,208
Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority $556.892
$5,568,920

Staff recommends acceptance of a grant offer from the New York State Department of
Transportation (NYSDOT) for work described as “286K to the Port-Phase 1” Project
identified as NYDOT PIN 7935.37.301

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority is
hereby authorized and directed to execute all necessary Agreements on behalf of the
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority with New York State Department of Transportation
in connection with the 286K to the Port-Phase 1 Project, and it is further

RESOLVED, that the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority desires to advance the Project
by committing funds for the local match, the breakdown of the funding shares being:

New York State Department of Transportation $5,012,208
Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority $556,892
$5,568,920

RESOLVED, that a Certified copy of this Resolution be filed with the New York State
Commissioner of Transportation by attaching it to any necessary Agreement in connection
with the 286K to the Port-Phase 1 Project; and it is further

RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall take effect immediately.

B .,_,-"_.g'-'"—"' i e J
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INITIATOR/PREPARER: Steven Lawrence APPROVED BY:

MOTION PASSED BY: Unanimous: Yes No




SECONDED BY: Abstained By:

STATE OF NEW YORK )
)ss:
COUNTY OF ST. LAWRENCE )

I, Vernon Burns, Chairperson of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority of the State
of New York, do hereby certify by such Board at a legally convened meeting held on July 17,
2024, on file as part of the Minutes of such meeting, and that the same is a true copy thereof,
and the whole of such original. | further certify that the full Board consists of
members and that of such members were present at such meeting and that five of
such members voted in favor of the above Resolution.

Vernon Burns
OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY

(SEAL)

Notary Public
State/Province of
My Commission Expires:




